
 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

Lisa Antrobus, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
01803 207026 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk 

(i) 

 

 

Tuesday, 18 June 2013 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

A meeting of Audit Committee will be held on 
 

Wednesday, 26 June 2013 
 

commencing at 2.00 pm 
 

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay, TQ1 3DR 

 
 

Members of the Committee 

 

Councillor Addis 

Councillor Bent 

Councillor Brooksbank 

 

Councillor Tyerman 

Councillor Stocks 

Councillor Pentney 

 

 

 

Working for a healthy, prosperous and happy Bay 



(ii) 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Election of Chairman/woman  
 To elect a Chairman/woman for the 2013/2014 Municipal Year. 

 
2.   Apologies  
 To receive any apologies for absence, including notifications of any 

changes to the membership of the Committee. 
 

3.   Appointment of Vice-Chairman/woman  
 To appoint a Vice-Chairman/woman for the 2013/2014 Municipal 

Year. 
 

4.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 3) 
 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Audit Committee held on 20 March 2013. 
 

5.   Declarations of interests 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect 
of items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance 
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 
 

6.   Urgent Items  
 To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
7.   Audit Committee Terms of Reference (Pages 4 - 5) 
 To note the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference as set out in the 

Council’s Constitution. 
 



(iii) 

8.   Audit Committee Update for Torbay Council (Pages 6 - 17) 
 To note the progress that Grant Thornton have made in delivering 

on their responsibilities as the Council’s external auditors. 
 

9.   The Audit Plan for Torbay Council (Pages 18 - 39) 
 To consider a report on the above. 

 
10.   Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 (Pages 40 - 54) 
 To consider the Annual Governance Statement 2012/13, that 

provides an opportunity for the organisation to review its processes, 
controls and objectives.  
 

11.   Treasury Management Outturn 2012/13 (Pages 55 - 72) 
 To consider a report that sets out the performance of the Treasury 

Management function in supporting the provision of Council 
services in 2012/13. 
 

12.   Strategic Risk Management 2012/13 (Pages 73 - 89) 
 To note a report which outlines the Council’s position at the end of 

2012/13 in respect of risk management. 
 

13.   Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 To consider passing a resolution to exclude the press and public 

from the meeting prior to consideration of the following item on the 
agenda on the grounds that exempt information (as defined in 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended)) is 
likely to be disclosed. 
 

14.   Internal Audit Annual Report  
 To consider an exempt report which reviews of the work undertaken 

by Internal Audit during 2012/13, and provides an opinion on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 
environment. 
 



 
 

Minutes of the Audit Committee 

 
20 March 2013 

 
-: Present :- 

 
Councillor Hill (Chairman) 

 

Councillors Addis, Bent, Brooksbank, Stocks and Pountney (Vice-Chair) 
 
 

 
23. Minutes  

 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 19 December 2012 
were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

24. Audit Committee Update for Torbay Council  
 
Members noted the Audit Committee update from Sue Hicks of Grant Thornton. 
The purpose of this update was to provide the Audit Committee with a report on 
progress in delivering their responsibilities as the council’s external auditors.  The 
report also highlighted key emerging national issues and developments which may 
be of interest to members of the Audit Committee. 
 
Members wanted assurance that the challenge questions within the report were 
being fulfilled. 
 
Action:  
 
Paul Looby, Executive Head – Finance, to draw up a template with responses to 
questions and provide Audit Committee with a briefing note. 
 

25. Torbay Council's Whistleblowing Policy  
 
Members considered a report which outlined changes that have been made to the 
Torbay Council Whistleblowing Policy which would avoid inappropriate use of the 
policy, to signpost to other Council policies that are available and to make clear 
accountability for action and to reflect legal changes taking effect in April 2013. 
 
Resolved: 
 
i) that the Whistleblowing Policy as out in Appendix 1 to the report be 

approved;  
 

ii) that minor changes to t he Whistleblowing Policy, arising as a result of 
changes to the Council’s top tier structure be delegated to the Executive 
Head of Business Services in consultation with the Chairman of the Audit 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



Audit Committee   Wednesday, 20 March 2013 
 

 
Committee; and 
 

iii) that the Chairman of the Audit Committee be notified , as soon as practical, 
when Whistleblowing incidents occur and if appropriate, for  an Audit 
Committee to meet to be briefed of incidents at an early stage. 

 
26. Progress Report on Strategic Risk Management  

 
Members considered a Progress Report on Strategic Risk Management. The 
Council has developed a new approach to risk management. The new approach 
reflects the changing operating position that local government now works within 
following the comprehensive spending review and a 30% cut in local government 
by 2014/15. 
 
The aims of the approach are to develop a more strategic approach and to 
achieve greater clarity on the level of risk the Council is willing to accept and to 
embed this approach in day to day activity. 
 
Action: 
 
For a report to be brought to June Audit Committee to highlight Risk Management. 
 

27. Public Sector Internal Audit Standards  
 
Members noted the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards report from Rob 
Hutchins of Devon Audit Partnership (DAP). 
 
It was noted that the numbering on the submitted report at 5.1 and 5.2 were 
duplicated and Alun Williams from Grant Thornton advised that note 5.2 of the 
submitted report was incorrect 
 
Action: 
 
For a joint note from Devon Audit Partnership and Grant Thornton to be 
circulated to Members within the next few weeks to clarify points 5.2 and 5.3. 
of the submitted report. 
 
 

28. Internal Audit Charter/Terms of Reference  
 
Members noted the Internal Audit Charter/Terms of Reference which described 
the purpose, authority, and principal responsibilities of the Council’s Internal Audit 
Service, which is provided by the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP). 
 

29. Internal Audit Plan  
 
Members considered a report on the Internal Audit Plan 2013/14 and noted that all 
principal Local Authorities, including Torbay Council, are subject to the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended), and the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2006 and 2011, which require that the Authority should make 

Page 2



Audit Committee   Wednesday, 20 March 2013 
 

 
provision for Internal Audit.  From April 2013, organisations in the UK public sector 
are required to adhere to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
 
Rob Hutchins, Devon Audit Partnership, informed Members that 1,321day of 
internal audit input will be required for Torbay Council in 2013/14 but this remains 
flexible and the days allocated are a rough guide in order to be proactive and 
reactive. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Committee agreed in principle to the proposed Audit Plan for 2013/14. 
 

30. Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
(Note:  Prior to consideration of the item in Minute 31 the press and public were 
formally excluded from the meeting on the grounds that the item involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).) 
 

31. Breakdown of Fee's  
 
Members noted a detailed breakdown of the hourly rates for auditors, which made 
up the total fees, as requested at Audit Committee on 19 December 2012. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 3



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
: 

 T
e

rm
s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

: 
 1
. 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
’s
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 o
p
in
io
n
, 
a
n
d
 a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 (
a
c
tu
a
l 

a
n
d
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 i
t 
c
a
n
 g
iv
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 2
. 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
s
u
m
m
a
ri
e
s
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
. 

 3
. 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 4
. 

T
o
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 
re
p
o
rt
 
fr
o
m
 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 
o
n
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 
n
o
t 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
w
it
h
in
 
a
 
re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
. 

 5
. 

T
o
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
r’
s
 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
L
e
tt
e
r,
 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
re
p
o
rt
s
, 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
re
p
o
rt
 
to
 
th
o
s
e
 
c
h
a
rg
e
d
 
w
it
h
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
. 

 6
. 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
r.

 
 7
. 

T
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
c
o
p
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
p
th
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 i
t 
g
iv
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
. 

 8
. 

T
o
 l
ia
is
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
r.

 
 9
. 

T
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 w
o
rk
 f
ro
m
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 w
it
h
in
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

 R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
 1
0
. 

T
o
 
m
a
in
ta
in
 
a
 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 
C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 
in
 
re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 
ru
le
s
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 

re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
d
e
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
d
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
(t
h
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 i
s
 f
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 l
ie
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
d
e
s
 

o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t)
. 
 

 1
1
. 

T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 i
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 C

h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O

ff
ic
e
r,
 a
 D

ir
e
c
to
r,
 t
h
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r,
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
5
1
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
(C
h
ie
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r)
 o
r 
a
n
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
o
d
y
. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 4



 1
2
. 

T
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ri
s
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.

 
 1
3
. 

T
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 o
n
 ‘
R
a
is
in
g
 C

o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
t 
W
o
rk
’ 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 ‘
A
n
ti
-f
ra
u
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 1
4
. 

T
o
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 i
ts
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
. 

 1
5
. 

T
o
 
o
v
e
rs
e
e
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 
fo
r 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

 1
6
. 

T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 C
o
d
e
 o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
. 

 1
7
. 

T
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 o
w
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
. 

 A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 

 1
8
. 

O
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
. 

 1
9
. 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
r’
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 w
it
h
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
. 

 

Page 5



A
u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
U

p
d
at

e

fo
r 

T
o

rb
ay

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

Y
e

a
r
 e

n
d

 3
1

 M
a

r
c

h
 2

0
1

3

1
9

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

©
  2

01
3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

  
 | 
  A

ud
it 
P
ro
gr
es

s 
re
po

rt
 –

T
or
ba

y 
C
ou

nc
il 
 | 
  1

9 
Ju

ne
 2
01

3

1
9

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

A
lu

n
W

il
li

a
m

s

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d

T
+
4
4
 (
0
) 
1
1
7
 3
0
5
7
7
9
7

E
a
lu
n
.g
.w
ill
ia
m
s
@
u
k
.g
t.
c
o
m

S
u

e
 H

ic
k

A
u
d
it
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r

T
+
4
4
 (
0
) 
1
1
7
 3
0
5
7
8
7
2

E
s
u
e
.h
ic
k
@
u
k
.g
t.
c
o
m

S
tu

a
r
t 

H
o

lm
e
s

A
u
d
it
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

T
+
4
4
 (
0
) 
1
1
7
 3
0
5
7
8
7
1

E
s
tu
a
rt
.m
.h
o
lm
e
s
@
u
k
.g
t.
c
o
m

Agenda Item 8

Page 6



T
h

e 
co

n
te

n
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 r
el

at
e 

o
n

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
at

te
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 o

u
r 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e 

b
el

ie
v
e 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 b

e 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 t
o

 y
o

u
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

au
d

it
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 
 I

t 
is

 n
o

t 
a 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
al

l 
th

e 
re

le
v
an

t 
m

at
te

rs
, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

ay
 b

e 
su

b
je

ct
 t

o
 c

h
an

ge
, 
an

d
 i
n

 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

w
e 

ca
n

n
o

t 
b

e 
h

el
d

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 t
o

 y
o

u
 f

o
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g 

al
l 
o

f 
th

e 
ri

sk
s 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ay

 a
ff

ec
t 

yo
u
r 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
o

r 
an

y 
w

ea
k
n

es
se

s 
in

 y
o

u
r 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
 T

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 

so
le

ly
 f

o
r 

yo
u
r 

b
en

ef
it

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e 
q
u
o

te
d

 i
n

 w
h

o
le

 o
r 

in
 p

ar
t 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

o
u
r 

p
ri

o
r 

w
ri

tt
en

 

co
n

se
n

t.
 W

e 
d

o
 n

o
t 

ac
ce

p
t 

an
y 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
an

y 
lo

ss
 o

cc
as

io
n

ed
 t

o
 a

n
y 

th
ir

d
 p

ar
ty

 a
ct

in
g,

 

o
r 

re
fr

ai
n

in
g 

fr
o

m
 a

ct
in

g 
o

n
 t

h
e 

b
as

is
 o

f 
th

e 
co

n
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

, 
as

 t
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 w

as
 n

o
t 

p
re

p
ar

ed
 f

o
r,

 n
o

r 
in

te
n

d
ed

 f
o

r,
 a

n
y 

o
th

er
 p

u
rp

o
se

.

.

Page 7



C
o

n
te

n
ts

S
e
c
ti
o
n

P
a
g
e

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

4

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
t 
1
9
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3

5

E
m
e
rg
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 a
u
d
it
 i
s
s
u
e
s

7

G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n

8
 

L
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e

9

©
  2

01
3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

  
 | 
  A

ud
it 
P
ro
gr
es

s 
re
po

rt
 –

T
or
ba

y 
C
ou

nc
il 
 | 
  1

9 
Ju

ne
 2
01

3
33

Page 8



In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

T
h
is
 p
a
p
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
it
h
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 in
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 o
u
r 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 a
s
 y
o
u
r 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs
. 
T
h
e
 p
a
p
e
r 
a
ls
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
:

•
a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
e
m
e
rg
in
g
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
y
 b
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
to
 y
o
u
;
a
n
d

•
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m
a
y
 w
is
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r.

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 c
a
n
 f
in
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
u
s
e
fu
l 
m
a
te
ri
a
l 
o
n
 o
u
r 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 w
w
w
.g
ra
n
t-
th
o
rn
to
n
.c
o
.u
k
, 
w
h
e
re
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 

to
 o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r.
 H
e
re
 y
o
u
 c
a
n
 d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
 c
o
p
ie
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

If
 y
o
u
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 a
n
y
 i
te
m
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
, 
o
r 
w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
w
it
h
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
re
g
u
la
r 
e
m
a
il 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 

o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 o
f 
in
te
re
s
t 
to
 y
o
u
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
e
it
h
e
r 
y
o
u
r 
E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 o
r 
A
u
d
it
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r.

A
lu
n
W
ill
ia
m
s
 -
E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
  
T
 0
1
1
7
 3
0
5
7
7
9
7

M
 0
7
8
8
0
4
5
6
1
4
3

a
lu
n
.g
.w
ill
ia
m
s
@
u
k
.g
t.
c
o
m

©
  2

01
3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

  
 | 
  A

ud
it 
P
ro
gr
es

s 
re
po

rt
 –

T
or
ba

y 
C
ou

nc
il 
 | 
  1

9 
Ju

ne
 2
01

3
44

A
lu
n
W
ill
ia
m
s
 -
E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
  
T
 0
1
1
7
 3
0
5
7
7
9
7

M
 0
7
8
8
0
4
5
6
1
4
3

a
lu
n
.g
.w
ill
ia
m
s
@
u
k
.g
t.
c
o
m

S
u
e
H
ic
k
 -
A
u
d
it
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
T
 0
1
1
7
 3
0
5
7
8
7
2
  
 M
 0
7
8
8
0
4
5
6
1
3
3

s
u
e
.h
ic
k
@
u
k
.g
t.
c
o
m

Page 9



P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

t 
1
9
 J

u
n

e 
2
0
1
3

W
o
rk

P
la
n
n
e
d
 d
a
te

C
o
m
p
le
te
?
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
0
1
2
-1
3
 A
u
d
it
 P
la
n

W
e
 a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 i
s
s
u
e
 a
n
 a
u
d
it
 p
la
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
 

s
e
tt
in
g
 o
u
t 
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 g
iv
e
 a
n
 

o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 2
0
1
2
-1
3
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
.

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

Y
e
s

O
u
r 
2
0
1
2
-1
3
 A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 i
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
.

In
te
ri
m
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
u
d
it
 

O
u
r 
in
te
ri
m
 f
ie
ld
w
o
rk
 v
is
it
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
:

•
u
p
d
a
te
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

•
u
p
d
a
te
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
y
s
te
m
s

•
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 o
n
 c
o
re
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

Y
e
s

O
u
r 
in
te
ri
m
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 a
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 in
 

o
u
r 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
.

©
  2

01
3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

  
 | 
  A

ud
it 
P
ro
gr
es

s 
re
po

rt
 –

T
or
ba

y 
C
ou

nc
il 
 | 
  1

9 
Ju

ne
 2
01

3
55

s
y
s
te
m
s

•
e
a
rl
y
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

•
e
a
rl
y
s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
v
e
 t
e
s
ti
n
g

•
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
.

2
0
1
2
-1
3
 f
in
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
u
d
it

In
c
lu
d
in
g
:

•
a
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
1
2
-1
3
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
;

•
W
h
o
le
 o
f
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 (
W
G
A
) 
re
tu
rn
; 
a
n
d

•
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

J
u
ly
 –
A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
3

N
/A

P
la
n
n
in
g
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 a
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
.

Page 10



P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

t 
1
9
 J

u
n

e 
2
0
1
2

W
o
rk

P
la
n
n
e
d
 d
a
te

C
o
m
p
le
te
?
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 (
V
fM
) 
c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n

T
h
e
 s
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 V
F
M
 

c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
e
s
o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 p
ro
p
e
r 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 in
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r:
-

•
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
s
ili
e
n
c
e
; 
a
n
d
 

•
c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 h
o
w
 i
t 
s
e
c
u
re
s
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
, 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
. 

In
it
ia
l 
ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
–

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3

D
e
ta
ile
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
–

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
/M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
3

Y
e
s

In
it
ia
l 
ri
s
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
 N
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
is
k
s
 

w
e
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 p
ie
c
e
s
 

o
f 
w
o
rk
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
.

O
u
r 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
. 
 

O
u
r 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
.

©
  2

01
3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

  
 | 
  A

ud
it 
P
ro
gr
es

s 
re
po

rt
 –

T
or
ba

y 
C
ou

nc
il 
 | 
  1

9 
Ju

ne
 2
01

3
66

Page 11



E
m

er
gi

n
g 

is
su

es
 a

n
d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts

A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 a
u
d
it
is
s
u
e
s

L
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 

T
h
e
 k
e
y
 d
a
te
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 a
re
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
:

•
b
y
 3
0
 J
u
n
e
 -
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
c
e
rt
if
ie
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 d
ra
ft
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

•
b
y
 3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r:

-
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
c
e
rt
if
ie
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
l 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 b
e
fo
re
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
’ 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l

-
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

-
th
e
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 i
s
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 o
p
in
io
n
, 
c
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
 a
n
d
 a
u
d
it
 r
e
p
o
rt
 if
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
it
o
r.
 

T
h
e
 k
e
y
 d
a
te
s
 f
o
r 
W
h
o
le
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
re
:

•
b
y
 3
1
 J
u
ly
 -
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
u
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 W

G
A
 L
-P
a
c
k
 b
y
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

©
  2

01
3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

  
 | 
  A

ud
it 
P
ro
gr
es

s 
re
po

rt
 –

T
or
ba

y 
C
ou

nc
il 
 | 
  1

9 
Ju

ne
 2
01

3
77

•
b
y
 3
1
 J
u
ly
 -
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
u
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 W

G
A
 L
-P
a
c
k
 b
y
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

•
b
y
 7
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
-
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
a
u
d
it
e
d
 W

G
A
 L
-P
a
c
k
 b
y
 a
u
d
it
o
r

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
.

Page 12



E
m

er
gi

n
g 

is
su

es
 a

n
d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts

G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n

L
o
c
a
l
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

In
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
, 
w
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 '
L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 2
0
1
3
',
 o
u
r 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 i
n
to
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
:

•
s
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 f
ro
m
 o
v
e
r 
6
0
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
n
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s

•
a
 d
e
s
k
 t
o
p
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
n
a
to
ry
 f
o
re
w
o
rd
s
 f
o
r 
1
5
3
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
, 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
o
u
r 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

c
h
e
c
k
lis
ts
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
IP
F
A
/S
O
L
A
C
E
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 n
o
te
s
.

G
o
o
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 b
o
th
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
le
a
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
It
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
 i
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
, 
re
d
u
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 

lik
e
lih
o
o
d
 o
f 
th
in
g
s
 g
o
in
g
 w
ro
n
g
 a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
ts
 t
h
e
m
 w
h
e
n
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 d
o
 o
c
c
u
r.
 I
t 
in
s
p
ir
e
s
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 b
e
s
t
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
re
 

b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
ig
h
t 
re
a
s
o
n
s
, 
th
a
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
u
b
lic
 m
o
n
e
y
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 w
is
e
ly
 s
p
e
n
t.

©
  2

01
3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

  
 | 
  A

ud
it 
P
ro
gr
es

s 
re
po

rt
 –

T
or
ba

y 
C
ou

nc
il 
 | 
  1

9 
Ju

ne
 2
01

3
88

b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
ig
h
t 
re
a
s
o
n
s
, 
th
a
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
u
b
lic
 m
o
n
e
y
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 w
is
e
ly
 s
p
e
n
t.

T
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
:

•
o
n
e
 t
h
ir
d
 o
f 
s
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 d
o
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
a
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
re
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
c
o
m
p
le
x
it
y
 

m
a
k
e
s
 t
h
e
m
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d

•
m
a
n
y
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
fo
llo
w
 t
o
o
 r
ig
id
ly
 t
h
e
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 t
e
x
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
IP
F
A
/S
O
L
A
C
E
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
, 
ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 u
n
iq
u
e
 f
e
a
tu
re
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

•
e
x
p
la
n
a
to
ry
 f
o
re
w
o
rd
s
 a
re
 o
ft
e
n
 f
a
r 
fr
o
m
 ‘e
x
p
la
n
a
to
ry
’,
 b
e
in
g
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
a
lig
n
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
’ 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 g
o
a
ls

•
o
n
-g
o
in
g
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 c
o
m
m
o
n
ly
 t
w
o
 d
is
ti
n
c
t 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
. 

•
th
e
re
 is
 o
ft
e
n
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
w
h
a
t 
th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 is
 f
o
r 
a
n
d
 h
o
w
 i
t 
fi
ts
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r

•
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
lli
a
n
c
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
, 
2
1
%
 o
f 
s
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 
c
le
a
r 
a
b
o
u
t 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
ro
le
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 w
h
e
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
.

C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
:

•
H
a
v
e
y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
?
 

•
W
h
a
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 d
o
 y
o
u
 p
la
n
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
?

G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 c
a
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
 y
o
u
 w
it
h
 a
 b
e
s
p
o
k
e
, 
b
e
n
c
h
-m
a
rk
e
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 
If
 y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
y
 q
u
e
ri
e
s
 o
n
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
, 
ta
lk
 t
o
 y
o
u
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
to
 s
e
e
 h
o
w
 G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 c
o
u
ld
 h
e
lp
.

Page 13



E
m

er
gi

n
g 

is
su

es
 a

n
d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts

L
o
c
a
l
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
g
u
id
a
n
c
e

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s

In
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
, 
th
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 O
ff
ic
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 '
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
'.
  
T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 e
x
a
m
in
e
d
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 f
u
n
d
in
g
, 
a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
’ 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
to
th
e
ir
 

fu
n
d
in
g
. 
It
 h
a
s
 t
h
re
e
 p
a
rt
s
:

• 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
s
e
tt
in
g
 o
u
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 2
0
1
0
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w

• 
L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
-
s
e
tt
in
g
 o
u
t 
h
o
w
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m
e

• 
M
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 -
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 g
ro
w
in
g
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
’ 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
, 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
to
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
.

©
  2

01
3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

  
 | 
  A

ud
it 
P
ro
gr
es

s 
re
po

rt
 –

T
or
ba

y 
C
ou

nc
il 
 | 
  1

9 
Ju

ne
 2
01

3
99

in
c
re
a
s
e
.

S
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 w
e
re
:

•
s
o
 f
a
r,
 lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
b
s
o
rb
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 s
o
m
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

re
d
u
c
e
d

•
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 m
a
y
 f
in
d
 i
t 
h
a
rd
e
r 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 r
e
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 a
b
s
o
rb
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

•
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
’ 
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
h
ile
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 d
e
p
e
n
d
s
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s

•
b
y
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 r
in
g
-f
e
n
c
in
g
 o
f 
it
s
 g
ra
n
ts
, 
c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
a
im
s
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 g
re
a
te
r 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 f
le
x
ib
ili
ty

•
th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
is
 m
a
k
in
g
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
re
a
te
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
ri
s
k
s
 a
n
d
 

u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
th
e
 p
a
rt
ia
l 
lo
c
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

•
th
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
to
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 w
id
e
s
p
re
a
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
fa
ilu
re
 i
s
 u
n
te
s
te
d
. 

C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
:

•
H
a
s
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
?

Page 14



E
m

er
gi

n
g 

is
su

es
 a

n
d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts

L
o
c
a
l
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
g
u
id
a
n
c
e

P
a
y
 p
o
li
c
y
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 

T
h
e
 S
e
c
re
ta
ry
 o
f 
S
ta
te
 f
o
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 p
a
y
 p
o
lic
y
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
fo
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

w
h
ic
h
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ts
:

•
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
y
 p
o
lic
y
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
c
le
a
rl
y
, 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 f
u
lly
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 A
c
t 

2
0
1
1
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
in
g
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
. 

•
fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 v
o
te
 o
n
 s
a
la
ry
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
£
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 o
r 
m
o
re
. 
T
h
o
s
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w
h
o
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

s
e
n
io
r 
p
o
s
ts
 o
v
e
r 
£
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 s
h
o
u
ld
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 d
e
g
re
e
 o
f 
o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 b
y
 a
d
o
p
ti
n
g
 a
 l
o
w
e
r 
th
re
s
h
o
ld
 f
o
r 

v
o
te
s
, 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 

•
fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 v
o
te
 o
n
 s
e
v
e
ra
n
c
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 o
v
e
r 
£
1
0
0
,0
0
0
. 

•
w
h
e
re
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
 h
a
v
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 e
le
c
te
d
 m
a
y
o
rs
, 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 t
h
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 e
le
c
te
d
 m
a
y
o
r 
a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 a
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
h
e
 m
a
y
o
r 

m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
. 

©
  2

01
3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

  
 | 
  A

ud
it 
P
ro
gr
es

s 
re
po

rt
 –

T
or
ba

y 
C
ou

nc
il 
 | 
  1

9 
Ju

ne
 2
01

3
1
0
1
0

m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
. 

C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
:

•
H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 h
o
w
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
la
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 y
o
u
r 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
s
 p
u
b
li
s
h
in
g
?

Page 15



E
m

er
gi

n
g 

is
su

es
 a

n
d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts

L
o
c
a
l
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
g
u
id
a
n
c
e

D
ra
ft
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 b
il
l 

T
h
e
D
ra
ft
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 B
ill
 w
a
s
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
re
-l
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
. 
In
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
, 
th
e
 D
ra
ft
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 B
ill
 

a
d
 h
o
c
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 '
P
re
-L
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 D
ra
ft
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 B
ill
'.
 T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
re
a
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 –
m
o
s
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
u
d
it
o
rs
. 
T
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 

re
g
u
la
to
ry
 r
e
g
im
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
:

•
T
h
e
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 a
c
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
g
u
la
to
r 
fo
r 
a
u
d
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 O
ff
ic
e
 w
ill
 s
e
t 
th
e
 c
o
d
e
 o
f 
a
u
d
it
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
.

•
F
ro
m
 1
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
7
, 
lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
b
o
d
ie
s
w
ill
 a
p
p
o
in
t 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
u
d
it
o
rs
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
o
r 
p
a
n
e
l.

©
  2

01
3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

  
 | 
  A

ud
it 
P
ro
gr
es

s 
re
po

rt
 –

T
or
ba

y 
C
ou

nc
il 
 | 
  1

9 
Ju

ne
 2
01

3
1
1
1
1

•
F
ro
m
 1
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
7
, 
lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
b
o
d
ie
s
w
ill
 a
p
p
o
in
t 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
u
d
it
o
rs
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
o
r 
p
a
n
e
l.

•
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 g
iv
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
u
d
it
o
rs
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 w
id
e
r 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
in
c
lu
d
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
, 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 in
 t
h
e
ir
 u
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

in
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 i
n
te
re
s
t.

T
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 b
ill
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
to
 g
o
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rl
ia
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l.

C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
:

•
H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
u
d
it
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 D
ra
ft
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 B
il
l 
w
il
l 
a
ff
e
c
t 
y
o
u
?

Page 16



©
 2
01

3 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

. 
A
ll 
rig

ht
s 
re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n'
 m

ea
ns

 G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
U
K
 L
LP

, 
a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi
lit
y
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi
p.
 

G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
is
 a
 m

em
be

r 
fir
m
 o
f 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
 L
td
 

(G
ra
nt

T
ho

rn
to
n 
In
te
rn
at
io
na

l).
 R

ef
er
en

ce
s 
to
 'G

ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n'
 a
re
 

to
 th

e 
br
an

d 
un

de
r 
w
hi
ch

 t
he

 G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
m
em

be
r 
fir
m
s 
op

er
at
e 

an
d 
re
fe
r 
to
 o
ne

 o
r 
m
or
e 
m
em

be
r 
fir
m
s,
 a
s 
th
e 
co

nt
ex

t 
re
qu

ire
s.
 

G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
In
te
rn
at
io
na

l 
an

d 
th
e 
m
em

be
r 
fir
m
s 
ar
e 
no

t 
a 

w
or
ld
w
id
e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi
p.
 S

er
vi
ce

s 
ar
e 
de

liv
er
ed

 i
nd

ep
en

de
nt
ly
 b
y 

m
em

be
r 
fir
m
s,
 w
hi
ch

 a
re
 n
ot
 r
es

po
ns

ib
le
 f
or
 t
he

 s
er
vi
ce

s 
or
 a
ct
iv
iti
es

 
of
 o
ne

 a
no

th
er
. 
G
ra
nt
 T
ho

rn
to
n 
In
te
rn
at
io
na

l d
oe

s 
no

t 
pr
ov

id
e 

se
rv
ic
es

 to
 c
lie
nt
s.
 

g
ra
n
t-
th
o
rn
to
n
.c
o
.u
k

Page 17



Agenda Item 9

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



  

 
 

 

 

Title: Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
  

To: Audit Committee On: 26 June 2013 
    
Key Decision: No   
   

Change to 
Budget: 

No Change to 
Policy 
Framework: 

No 
 

   

Contact Officer: Mark Bennett 

℡ Telephone: 01803 207360 
�  E.mail: Mark.bennett@torbay.gov.uk 
 
 
1. What we are trying to achieve and the impact on our customers 
 
1.1 The preparation of the Annual Governance Statement provides the opportunity 
 for the organisation to review its processes, controls and objectives and to 
 provide assurance to Members, Senior Officers and stakeholders as to the 
 reliability of its statement of accounts and the probity of its operations.  
 
2. Recommendation(s) for decision 
 
2.1 That the Committee consider and agree the proposed Annual Governance 

Statement for 2012/13 which can then be approved by the Mayor and Chief 
Operating Officer and appended to the Statement of Accounts report to be 
approved by Council in September. 

 
2.2 That, following the review of the Annual Governance Statement by External 

Audit, Officers be requested to bring an action plan back to this 
Committee. 

 
3. Key points and reasons for recommendations 
 
Key points 
 
3.1 The key features of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) are summarised 

as follows: - 
  

• It is a requirement of the Accounts & Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 
2006, Regulation 4 

 

• The Statement of Required Practice (SORP) requires the AGS to be included 

Agenda Item 10

Page 40



  

with the Statement of Accounts, therefore it will need to be completed and 
signed off prior to the Council considering the Statement of Accounts at its 
meeting in September. 

 

• The AGS is not audited but it is reviewed by external audit. This, in itself, will not 
give rise to qualifications on the accounts but it will be an integral part of other 
assessments of our arrangements eg. our use of resources. 

 

• The AGS should relate to the entire financial year, it is not something which 
should be done only at year end but the assurance should be in place 
throughout the year. 

 

• The statement will need signing by the Chief Operating officer and Mayor (as 
most senior Member of the Council). 

 

• Action Plans will need to be produced to address any weaknesses/issues that 
are identified in the consequential inspection. 

 
3.2 The Annual Governance Statement for 2012/13 is attached as Annex 1 to this 

report. The format of the statement is in accordance with the CIPFA / SOLACE 
Code of Practice and the contents of the Statement have been agreed with the 
Senior Officers of the Council. 

 
 Reasons for the Recommendations 
 
3.3 To inform Members of the Council’s Governance and Internal Control framework 

and any significant control issues in line with statutory requirements under the 
Accounts & Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006. 

 
3.4 To ensure key issues are communicated to and actioned by the Council to 

ensure risks are managed and the Governance Framework is sound. 
 
 
For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to the supporting 
information attached. 
 
Mark Bennett 
Head of Business Services 
 

Page 41



  

Supporting information 
 
A1. Introduction and history 
 
A1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 require every local authority as good 

practice to include in their annual statement of accounts a “Annual Governance 
Statement” signed by the Leader/Most senior Member (i.e. Elected Mayor) of the 
Council and the Chief Executive. The statement is wide ranging and includes an 
assessment of risks, Corporate Governance and the delivery of the Council’s 
functions. Internal Audit work forms an element of the evidence required but it is 
the management of the organisation that is responsible for the governance and 
internal control framework and for providing the assurance required. 

 
A1.2 In assessing our use of resources a number of elements are considered. One 

such area is internal control and this includes the requirement for the Annual 
Governance Statement to be considered independently by Members prior to the 
consideration of the final Statement of Accounts.  

 
A2. Risk assessment of preferred option 
 
A2.1 Outline of significant key risks 
 
A2.1.1 The report is predominantly for information and therefore there are no risks 

associated with the recommendations. However the report highlights a number 
of issues, which if not addressed could potentially expose the Council to risk. 

 
A3 Remaining risks 
 
A3.1 It is the responsibility of management to establish systems of governance and 

internal control to ensure that activities are conducted in a secure, efficient and 
well-ordered manner. It does not matter how good the systems of internal control 
are, it is not possible to guarantee that a fraud will not occur, although it is hoped 
any irregularity would be quickly identified and resolved.  As such Internal Audit 
can never give full assurance that the controls are working effectively or that 
fraud is not occurring.  However with reference to the annual report from the 
Head of Internal Audit the Council can take reasonable assurance regarding the 
controls in place are operating satisfactorily. 

 
A4. Other Options 
 
A.4.1 The issues raised in this report are predominantly for information and as such 
 there is no requirement to consider alternative options. 
 
A.4.2 There is a statutory requirement for the Council to publish an Annual 
 Governance Statement as part of its Statutory Accounts.  
 
A.4.3 Internal Audit provides one element of the assurance required to enable the 

 Mayor and Chief Executive to sign the Annual Governance Statement required 
 under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 (amended).   Service 
 Managers provide another source of assurance and should provide evidence 
 to support their view that the governance framework and internal controls are 
 adequate.  External reviews provide a further source of assurance. 

 

Page 42



  

A5. What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and 
crime and disorder? 

 
A5.1 Resource implications are therefore related to staff time in preparing the 

Statement and in monitoring the controls in place to ensure the achievement of 
the Council’s objectives. 

 
A6. Consultation and Customer Focus 
 
A6.1 The Annual Governance Statement is a statutory requirement and describes the 

Council’s systems of governance and internal control and its processes for 
monitoring compliance with legislative requirements including equalities, 
environmental sustainability and crime and disorder. 

 
A7. Consultation and Customer Focus 
 
 
A7.1 The Annual Governance Statement has to be included within the Council’s 

Statement of  Accounts and is therefore available to the general public and all 
stakeholders and interested parties. 

 
A8. Are there any implications for other Business Units? 
 
A8.1 The Annual Governance Statement covers all services of the Council and will 

therefore have linkages and implications for all business units and for Torbay 
schools.  

 
Appendices 
Annex 1 Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 
 
Documents available in members’ rooms 
None 
 
Background Papers: 
The following documents/files were used to compile this report: 
 
CIPFA FAN Guidance 
CIPFA / SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government framework, 
Guidance Note and Briefing Note. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2012/13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

Page 44



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012/13  

Scope of responsibility  

Torbay Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. Torbay Council also has 
a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to 
a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.  

Torbay Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is 
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government. A copy of the code is on the Council’s website at The 
Council's Constitution or can be obtained from Democratic Services. This statement 
explains how Torbay Council has complied with the code and also meets the 
requirements of regulation 4 (2) of the Accounts and Audit regulations 2003 as amended 
by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 in relation to the 
publication of a statement on internal control.  

The purpose of the governance framework  

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and 
values, by which the authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it 
accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the authority to monitor 
the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have 
led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.  

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives; it can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing 
process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Torbay 
Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being 
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically.  

The governance framework has been in place at Torbay Council throughout the year 
ended 31st March 2013 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
statement of accounts.  

Page 45



The Governance framework  

The key elements of Torbay Council’s governance framework are summarised below:  

(A) Arrangements for identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its 
purpose and intended outcomes for citizens and service users  

• A Community Plan refreshed in Autumn 2011 sets out the Council’s vision 
developed jointly with the Torbay Strategic Partnership  which brings together 
representatives of the public, voluntary and business sectors 

• A Corporate Plan revised in March 2013 to reflect the current priorities of the 
Council 

• A medium term resource plan which is regularly and updated to support the 
achievement of the Council’s corporate priorities 

• A performance management framework which includes performance reports 
reported to the public 

• A programme of consultation with the public through public meeting and other 
mediums on a regular basis 

• As part of its budget setting process the Council co-ordinates a series of public 
events to gain an understanding of the communities views.  

• The Council and the Care Trust, together with the Police and other partners have 
worked together to identify the needs of the area, including Health matters, and 
published a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

• The Corporate Plan and Business Plans are reviewed annually as part of the 
Council’s Annual Planning Cycle  

• The Council's Communication Strategy, is communicated to staff, and all 
stakeholders via regular internal and external updates using promotional material, 
the web, the intranet 

• Torbay Council 2012/13 Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 
2013 

• Community Partnerships where local ward members and stakeholders can 
discuss concerns and issues with their constituents 

(B) Arrangements for reviewing the authority’s vision and its implications for the 
authority’s governance arrangements  

• The authority has also kept under review other key initiatives such as the actions 
arising from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Health and Well Being,  

• Regular consultation events were also used to inform the development and 
review of the authority’s vision. These have continued to be used to obtain 
feedback on both service delivery and proposed plans and developments  

• The budget setting process includes detailed scrutiny of proposals and their links 
to the Council's vision, priorities and stakeholder views, together with equalities 
impact assessments 

Page 46



• The Council is also very mindful that staff are also key stakeholders and as such, 
senior officers and Members have taken part in road shows. Internal 
communication approaches have been reviewed to ensure all staff are aware of 
all issues and new policies and practices. Positive working relationship with 
trades unions through monthly formal meetings and informal meetings with the 
Chief Operating Officer and consultation where appropriate 

(C) Arrangements for measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they 
are delivered in accordance with the authority’s objectives and for ensuring 
that they represent the best use of resources  

• Surveys of users in service specific groups are used together Viewpoint surveys 
to assess quality of service and policy changes to be made in light of user 
feedback. All these surveys and results are publicly accessible on the Council 
website. In addition the Council also encourages user involvement in appropriate 
services areas, examples being Speaking out in Torbay (SPOT) within the 
learning disabilities  

• The Council records performance information using performance-reporting 
software ‘Service Performance and Risk’ (SPAR) and action on areas of poor 
performance is closely scrutinised, by the senior leadership team and Overview 
and Scrutiny members. The performance reporting system is based on 
exceptions and where performance is identified as a concern, appropriate 
corrective action will be considered, scrutinised and monitored 

• The Council uses a range of benchmarking information, including the Audit 
Commission comparative data set and National Health Service (NHS) data. It 
uses the data to measure performance against comparators and to identify 
authorities from whom the Council could learn, and to identify potential areas of 
focus for budget reductions 

• There is also a range of consultation and feedback mechanisms for obtaining 
feedback from customers  

(D)  Arrangements for defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities 
of the executive, non executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear 
delegation arrangements and protocols for effective communication  

• The  Constitution sets out how decisions are made and the procedures that are 
followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local 
people  

• This includes the publication of a monthly Forward Plan containing all key 
decisions 

• The Constitution includes Standing Orders, Financial Regulations, Delegated 
powers, Contract Procurement rules and the budget and policy framework. These 
are underpinned by Codes of Conduct for officers and Members, Gifts and 
Hospitality rules, local protocols and by the Authority’s Code of Corporate 
Governance  

• The full Council of 37 elected Members, including the Mayor, is responsible for 
approving the Mayor’s budget and the policy framework. The Mayor is 
responsible for decisions within this framework and has been supported by other 
Members who oversee and advise on specific areas  

Page 47



• Matters outside of the budget and policy framework are referred to full Council for 
decision or advice to the mayor who normally makes decisions at the full council 

• A Scrutiny function with the Overview & Scrutiny Board which undertakes a range 
of reviews into policies and performance. The Board also has the facility to ‘call–
in’ Mayoral decisions or Officer key decisions and makes recommendations as 
appropriate 

• An Audit Committee is responsible for all internal and external audit matters along 
with some other Governance associated matters  

• Some regulatory functions remain the responsibility of the Council rather than the 
Mayor and most of these are delegated to a small number of regulatory 
committees appointed annually by the Council 

•  All meetings are open to the public but a small number of confidential matters 
are considered in private when the press and public are formally excluded from 
meetings. It is the Council’s objective to keep these private papers to a minimum 
with only the confidential elements being kept exempt from the press and public. 
This ensures open and transparent decision making is undertaken at all times. 
Council officers provide appropriate advice at the points of consideration and 
decision, and report to Members on progress and outcomes of decisions taken  

• The Authority has developed a number of Local Protocols (including in relation to 
Member and Officer Relations; Planning Matters and the role of the Monitoring 
Officer), all in line with good Corporate Governance  

• The Localism Act 2011 abolished the Standards Board regime and the national 
code of conduct that went with it and replaced it with a requirement that 
authorities promote and maintain high standards of conduct by members.  Part of 
this requirement is that the Council adopts a ‘local’ code of conduct dealing with 
what is expected of members and co-opted members of the authority when they 
are acting in that capacity and that such code makes appropriate provision for the 
registration by members of pecuniary and other interests of members.  This code 
was adopted by the Council at its meeting of 12 July  

 

(E) Arrangements for developing, communicating and embedding codes of 
conduct, defining the standards of behaviour for members and staff  

• The Council’s intranet contains a range of policies, procedures and guidance for 
all staff including Human Resources (HR) policies, I- learn training modules, 
Computer Security Policy, Freedom of Information Policy and Data Protection 
Policy and the Corporate Plan and Constitution 

• Legislative changes are monitored and reported to Strategic Leadership Team 
(SLT) and communicated to staff as required.  

• Corporate induction courses are run on a regular basis. Managers are 
responsible for local induction arrangements. Officers in politically restricted posts 
and those responsible for negotiating contracts are required to register their 
personal interests 

• The Council has a Fraud and Corruption Policy which is reviewed regularly and 
has been communicated to all staff and is available on the Council’s Intranet. 
That has been discussed and approved by the Council’s Standards Committee  

Page 48



• The Standards Committee’s remit includes the conduct of Members and 
investigating complaints in respect of individual Members. The  Standards 
Committee has an annual work programme to promote and embed ethical 
standards and this is reported to the Council 

 (F)  Arrangements for reviewing and updating Standing Orders and Financial 
Regulations, a scheme of delegation and supporting procedure 
notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and the 
processes and controls required to manage risks  

• The Council’s Constitution is reviewed throughout the year by the Monitoring 
Officer, Section 151 Officer and Democratic Services Manager in consultation 
with the Mayor and Group Leaders to ensure the Council’s governance 
arrangements reflect best practice 

• Directors and Executive Heads are responsible for managing risk within their 
departments 

• The Executive Head Business Services is responsible for the implementation and 
monitoring of the risk management strategy  

• The Council completed a detailed review of its Risk Management Policy and 
Strategy and the Strategic Risk Register in the current year including the 
identification of 6 strategic risks with clearly identified measures for mitigation 

• The Council, when considering any matter, will have a risk assessment within the 
report 

• The Council fully recognises the need to continue to manage risks in all projects 
and, where appropriate Prince II and MSP are applied 

(G)  Ensuring the Authority’s financial management arrangements conform with 
the governance arrangements of the CIPFA statement on the role of the 
Chief Finance Officer (CFO) in local government.  

• The Chief finance Officer (CFO) has direct access to the Chief Operating Officer 
on all matters and has direct access to all Members and senior officers of the 
Council   

• The Council follows practices to ensure it makes best use of its resources. The 
CFO works with Directors and Executive Heads to identify any financial issues 
which may require management action. These are reported to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board and Council on a quarterly basis, regular discussions take place 
with the Executive Member with responsibility for finance  

• All reports to Members include a section on the resource implications, prior to 
publication these implications are cleared by the CFO or one of his senior staff. 
These reports also cover value for money and benchmarking implications where 
appropriate  

• The full Council approves the Treasury Management Strategy on an annual basis 
and all Members are briefed on key financial issues  

• The CFO has responsibility for ensuring that the Council operates secure and 
reliable financial and accounting systems. Devon Audit Partnership undertake the 
role of auditing these systems to give the assurance needed  

Page 49



• The Council has developed a Medium Term Resource Plan, which is reviewed on 
an on-going basis to take into account new information and changing 
circumstances, this is used to inform reports to members, detailed in year plans 
are produced as part of the annual budget process, these in year plans represent 
the business units individual business plans through which financial and 
operational performance are monitored  

 (H)  Undertaking the core functions of an Audit Committee, as defined in CIPFA’s 
Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities  

• A stand alone Audit Committee was established during 2008-09 and meets on a 
quarterly basis where reports from both Internal and External Audit are 
considered as well as risk and associated matters 

(I) Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful  

• The system of internal financial control is based on a coherent accounting and 
budgeting framework including Financial Regulations, Contract Standing Orders, 
Scheme of Delegation and accountability 
 

• Medium-term resource plans covering both revenue and capital spend which 
provides a framework for the planning and monitoring of resource requirements. 
These also link in with the business development proposals which are fed by the 
Strategic Plan 

 

• Operation of the Capital Strategy aims to ensure that investment is linked to 
Strategic Objectives. Bids for capital and other asset management funding 
require an effective 'business case' linked to Strategic Objectives, and progress in 
delivering projects is formally monitored by the Capital Asset Management Team, 
Councillors and Commissioners’ Management Teams. Linked in with this is the 
Asset Management Plan which ensures that assets are only retained for effective 
business purposes 

 

• Financial stewardship in respect of both capital and revenue is reported to 
Overview and Scrutiny and Council quarterly, and is considered regularly by the 
Strategic Leadership Team. Management Teams also consider their respective 
budgets on a regular basis. This is supported by an established budget 
monitoring process by managers and Finance staff and the electronic distribution 
of budget monitoring reports to all managers  
 

• Directors and Executive Heads are required to produce an annual statement of 
Internal Control for their areas which includes statements about risk and the 
internal control framework. This is supported by Internal Audit who help embed 
risk management by cyclical audits and other management initiatives  
 

(J) Arrangements for Whistle-blowing and for receiving and investigating 
complaints from the public  

• The Fraud & Corruption Policy, Fraud Response Plan and Whistle Blowing 
Policy were reviewed and updated in 2008.  A further review was undertaken 
during 2012/13 with an updated Whistle Blowing policy being agreed on 20 March 
2013.  The Policy is available on the website, intranet and direct from the 
Information Governance team. The Authority also subscribes to Public Concern 
at Work which provides a staff helpline  
 

Page 50



• The Council has an established phone line that any whistle blowing call can be 
made to and which goes directly to the area which has responsibility for dealing 
with these issues in the first instance. These are recorded and passed on to the 
appropriate part of the organisation to investigate and the outcomes are 
monitored 

 

• The Council has procedures for dealing with customer complaints and provides 
the means for customers to feedback concerns or issues. Complaints are 
analysed and reported back to Members and Managers along with the actions 
taken. An Annual Report is produced outlining the complaints and compliments 
handled by the Council and Ombudsman during the previous financial year. This 
is reported to the Overview & Scrutiny Board. Customer Care standards have 
been agreed and published. The complaints procedures are regularly reviewed.  

 

(K)  Identifying the development needs of Members and senior officers in 
relation to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training  

• All members have personal development plans, corporate training  needs are 
identified through the Strategic Leadership Team  

• The Member Development Policy provides a structured approach to member 
development to ensure all members are supported in their role.  The  majority of 
training delivered through the Devon member development shared service 

• The Council has strongly supported staff development, particularly through 
programmes such as Institute of Leadership and Management 

 (L)  Arrangements for establishing clear channels of communication with all 
sections of the community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability 
and encouraging open consultation  

• Regular consultation events are held with public and voluntary services plus 
regular business forum meetings. Other consultation and feedback surveys are 
also undertaken throughout the year including via the Viewpoint Panel 
 

• Torbay Council operates a Call Centre which is based in Torquay and deals with 
a wide variety of calls from residents and visitors over an expanding range of 
issues as more services are included in those dealt with in the first instance by 
the centre 

 

• All customer contact received via our Call Centre or our Connections offices is 
documented to ensure the information is actioned by, or forwarded to, the 
relevant department, as necessary. The Council also uses its libraries as initial 
contact points from which enquiries can also be dealt with 
 

• The Consultation and Engagement framework is available on the website 
indicating mechanisms and groups and how the Consultation and Engagement 
Group effectively manages engagement with the public and voluntary sector. 
There are also a number of Community Partnerships across Torbay and regular 
newsletters to Viewpoint Panel members. Councillors have also been 
encouraged to produce their own means of communication and, for example a 
number have created their own websites 

 
 
 

Page 51



(M)  Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships 
and other group working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on 
the governance of partnerships, and reflecting these in the authority’s 
overall governance arrangements  

 

• The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance is available on its website. There is 
a robust Constitution established for the local Community Partnerships  

 

• Appropriate arrangements in respect of service specific partnerships such as the 
Torbay Care Trust and the Torbay Coast & Countryside Trust, TOR2 and English 
Riviera Tourist Company and Economic Development Company are in place  

 
Review of effectiveness  

• Torbay Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal 
control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive 
managers within the Authority who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of the Devon Audit 
Partnership’s annual report, and also by comments made by the External 
Auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates 

• Overall responsibility for the governance framework including the system of 
internal control rests with the Mayor and Chief Operating Officer and they receive 
regular reports from the Section 151 Officer on financial issues and the 
Monitoring Officer on legal issues as and when appropriate. This includes regular 
budget monitoring information and the Medium Term Resource Plan 

• This is supported by an annual review of Internal Audit by the Section 151 Officer 
which reviews compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the effectiveness 
of the audit service. 2012-13 saw the fourth year of operation of the Devon Audit 
Partnership which was the amalgamation of the three Internal Audit functions of 
Devon County Council, Plymouth City Council and Torbay Council and has 
continued during this year. As in previous years the service undertook certain 
assurance work on behalf of the Council and to give assurance to the external 
auditors as part their audit opinion. The external auditors raised no concerns 
about the standard of work performed by the Devon Audit Partnership. No major 
issues were identified and the service has maintained the level of assurance it is 
able to provide to management 

• The Council’s Constitution is continually reviewed throughout the year by the 
Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer and Governance Support Manager in 
consultation with the Mayor and Group Leaders and defines the relative 
responsibilities of the Council, the Mayor, Overview and Scrutiny and Senior 
Officers. This also includes the Schemes of Delegation, and also the Officer 
Scheme of Delegation  

• Torbay operates a mayoral system and has a constitutional working party 
whereby improvements and changes to the constitution are made and agreed. All 
members are inducted into the importance and processes of good governance 
and have informal and if required, formal ways of raising governance issues with 
the monitoring officer, chief executive, section 151 Officer and the senior 
leadership team  

• Since the May 2011 elections the Mayor has chosen to make the majority of his 
decisions at council meetings to ensure they are taken in public both full council 

Page 52



decisions (part of the policy framework) and Mayoral decisions are taken in public 
with full questions by council in order to further introduce further transparency and 
public accountability  

• The Audit Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Board operate to provide 
assurance and call the executive to account, through decisions in the forward 
plan, performance management and risk and the use of ‘call in’ where 
appropriate  

• Risk is embedded in performance management and can therefore be challenged 
and has oversight through the Executive, Audit Committee and Overview and 
Scrutiny Board 

• The standards committee continue to be part of the successful operation of the 
council’s governance,  

• There is also the whistle blowing mechanism which can be used to raise 
concerns which can include governance matters. Standards also provide 
independent feedback to members in their public duties through observing 
conduct at Council, and Overview and Scrutiny. This has allowed members to 
improve their performance individually and collectively, in addition to the 1-1s of 
member performance management  

• The Council continues to challenge itself in governance and includes governance 
‘days’ for all members to refocus when required 

• The council’s section 151 officer holds regular meetings with the Head of the 
Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) with responsibility for Torbay to discuss all on-
going and planned work and any issues which arise. The Head of Internal Audit 
reports 6 monthly to the Audit Committee setting out work undertaken and the 
planned work for the year. This will include reporting on audits and work 
undertaken where there are concerns over practice or systems of internal control 
and sets out how these will be addressed 

Internal Audit  

• The internal audit services is provided by Devon Audit Partnership (DAP). This is 
a shared service arrangement between Torbay, Plymouth and Devon councils 
and is constituted under section 20 of the Local Government Act 2000 

• Public Sector Internal Audit Standards – Collaboration between the Institute of 
Internal Auditors, CIPFA and International Audit Standards Setters has resulted in 
the first set of public sector internal audit standards (PSIAS) for the UK. The 
PSIAS, which came into force on 1 April 2013, have been developed to create 
consistent standards for the practice of internal audit across the public sector. An 
independent review of DAP was completed in November 2012 and confirmed that 
DAP were “ready” for the planned changes in approach 

• The Council’s Internal Audit Plan, which is risk based, is agreed annually with 
Commissioners and the Council’s Audit Committee. This provides the basis for 
the review of internal control and governance within the Council and includes the 
following: -  

o Annual reviews of the Council’s key financial systems by Internal Audit 
against known and evolving risks  

Page 53



o Cyclical reviews by Internal Audit of internal controls in operation within 
each service area against known and evolving risks based on a detailed 
risk assessment which considers the strategic and operational risks 
identified in the Corporate Risk Register and Business Plans and also 
includes consideration of materiality, sensitivity and previous audit and 
inspection findings; 

o Work in relation to the prevention of fraud and corruption and an 
allowance for the investigation of any potential irregularities identified 
either from audit work or through the Council’s whistle-blowing policy.  

o Advice and support to ensure future safeguards when implementing new 
systems  

o Value for Money work in relation to assessing the efficiency, economy 
and effectiveness of the Council’s operations and recommending 
improvements as necessary  

o The Council also receive reliance from the NHS Internal Audit 
Confederation over the controls in operation at Torbay and Southern 
Devon Health and Care NHS Trust. The controls cover the provision of 
the adult social services 

o Achievement of the Audit Plan is reported to the Audit Committee on a 
twice yearly basis. This report also includes an opinion and assurance 
about the system of internal control throughout the Council  

o Regular meetings were also held between the Section 151 Officer and a 
representative of the Devon Audit Partnership to discuss specific issues 
that have arisen 

 Significant governance Issues 
 

• No significant governance issues have been identified. Overall, and based on 
work performed during 2012/13, Internal Audit is able to provide reasonable 
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 
environment. 

 

 

Page 54



 

 

Meeting:  Audit Committee Date:  26th June 2013 

Council  18th July 2013  

Wards Affected:  All Wards in Torbay 

Report Title:  Treasury Management Outturn 2012/13 

Executive Lead Contact Details:  Mayor Gordon Oliver, 01803 207001, 

gordon.oliver@torbay.gov.uk 

Supporting Officer Contact Details:  Pete Truman, Principal Accountant, 01803 207302, 

pete.truman@torbay.gov.uk 

1. Purpose and Introduction 

 

1.1 This report informs the Council/Committee of the performance of the Treasury 

Management function in supporting the provision of Council services in 2012/13 

through management of cash flow, debt and investment operations and the effective 

control of the associated risks. 

 

2. Proposed Decision 

 

Audit Committee: 

 

2.1 That the Treasury Management decisions made during 2012/13 as detailed in 
this report be endorsed. 

 
Council: 
 

2.2 That the Audit Committee recommends Council endorse the Treasury 
Management decisions made during 2012/13, as detailed in the submitted 
report; and 

 
2.3 That Council be recommended to approve the Prudential and Treasury 

Indicators as set out in Annex 1 to this report. 
 

3. Reason for Decision 

 

3.1 The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government Act 

2003 to produce an annual outturn report reviewing treasury management activities 

and the actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2012/13. 

   

Agenda Item 11

Page 55



3.2 This report also meets the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 

Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 

Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

Page 56



 

Supporting Information 

4. Position 

 

4.1 Treasury management is defined by the Code as: 
 

“The management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, it’s banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated 
with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks”. 
 

4.2 During 2012/13 the minimum reporting requirements were that full Council should 
receive the following reports: 

 
• An annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 13th February 

2012) 
• A mid-year review report (distributed to Members on 12th December 2012) 
• An annual report following the year describing the activity compared to the 

strategy (this report) 
 
4.3 Recent changes in the regulatory environment place a much greater onus on 

Members for the review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. 
This report is important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for 
treasury activities and highlights compliance with the policies previously approved by 
Members. 

 
4.4 The Council also confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to 

give prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Audit 
Committee before they were reported to full Council. 

 
4.5 A major element of the Treasury Management function is the implementation and 

control of the Council’s borrowing decisions. Like all local authorities Torbay Council 
uses borrowing as a key source of funding for enhancing, purchasing or building 
assets within the approved capital plan.  

 
4.6 Borrowing allows the repayment costs of capital expenditure to be spread over future 

years which means that the costs of roads, schools etc are more likely to be met by 
those who use the assets than would be the case if the full cost of providing these 
facilities were met by taxpayers at the time of their construction. 

 
4.7 As part of the annual budget process the Council sets limits for the total amount of 

borrowing that it considers is affordable in terms of revenue resources available to 
make repayments. Treasury Management officers are tasked with maintaining 
borrowing within these levels and obtaining best value for the Council in terms of 
repayment rates and length of loans. 

 
4.8 The Treasury Management team also carry out management of the Council’s surplus 

cash balances arising from, for example: 

• Short term revenue balances (working capital) 

• Cash backed reserves 

• Capital funding received in advance of commencement of schemes 

Page 57



 
Balances are invested with approved financial institutions and other local authorities to 
obtain the best return for periods which ensure cash is available when needed. 
Security of cash and liquidity are the absolute priorities in all investment decisions. 

 
4.9 Treasury Management strategies were planned and implemented in conjunction with 

the Council’s appointed advisors, Sector Treasury Services although the Council 
officers were the final arbiters of the recommended approach. 

 

5. Possibilities and Options 

 

5.1 Not applicable 

 

6. Fair Decision Making 

 

6.1 Not applicable 

 

7. Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 

 

7.1 Not applicable 

 

8. Consultation 

 

8.1 Not applicable 

 

9. Risks 

 

9.1 Not applicable 

 

Appendices and Annexes 

 

 

Appendix 1 Treasury Management Activities in 2012/13 
 
Annex 1  Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2012/13 
Annex 2  The Economy and Interest Rates in 2012/13 
Annex 3  Counterparties with which funds have been deposited in 2012/13 

 

Additional Information 

 

Treasury Management Strategy 2012/13 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



  

 

Appendix 1 

Treasury Management Activities in 2012/13 

 

A1. Introduction 

 
A1.1  This Appendix covers: 
 

• Capital Expenditure and Financing 2012/13; 

• Capital Financing Requirement; 

• Treasury Position at year End; 

• The Strategy for 2012/13; 

• The Economy and Interest rates 2012/13; 

• Borrowing Rates in 2012/13; 

• Borrowing Outturn for 2012/13; 

• Investment Rates in 2012/13; 

• Investment Outturn for 2012/13; 

• Revenue Budget Performance; 

• Reporting Arrangements and Management Evaluation 
 

A2 Capital Expenditure and Financing 2012/13 
 
A2.1 The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities 

may either be: 

• Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources 
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant 
impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

• If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, 
the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need (though the timing of 
borrowing may be delayed through the application of cash balances held by the 
Council). 

A2.2 The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators and 
is shown in the table below. Other Prudential and Treasury Indicators are 
presented at Annex 1 to this report. 

 
2011/12 
Actual 
£m 

2012/13 
Revised 
£m 

2012/13 
Actual 
£m 

Total capital expenditure 22 24 19 

 
 

A3 Capital Financing Requirement 
 
A3.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  This figure is a gauge of the Council’s net 
debt position.  The CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and what 
resources have been used to pay for the capital spend.  It represents the 2012/13 
unfinanced capital expenditure and prior years’ net or unfinanced capital 
expenditure which has not yet been financed by revenue or other resources.   

 
 

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1

Page 59



  

A3.2 Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for 
this borrowing need.  Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the 
treasury service organises the Council’s cash position to ensure sufficient cash is 
available to meet the capital plans and cash flow requirements.  This may be 
sourced through borrowing from external bodies (such as the Government, through 
the Public Works Loan Board [PWLB] or the money markets), or utilising temporary 
cash resources within the Council. 

 

A3.3 Reducing the CFR – the Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed 
to rise indefinitely.  Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are 
broadly charged to revenue over the life of the asset.  The Council is required to 
make an annual revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision – MRP, to 
reduce the CFR.  This is effectively the reserving of funds for repayment of the 
borrowing need. This differs from the treasury management arrangements which 
ensure that cash is available to meet capital commitments. The Council’s 2012/13 
MRP Policy (as required by CLG Guidance) was approved as part of the Treasury 
Management Strategy Report for 2012/13 on 13

th
 February 2012. 

 
A3.4 The total CFR can also be reduced by: 

• the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital 
receipts); or  

• charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a 
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP).  

 
A3.5 Following the transfer of Local Government reorganisation debt from Devon County 

Council in 2010/11 the Council now budgets £500,000 per annum to reflect a 
provision for the repayment of this debt on maturity (similar to MRP) and all 
payments to 31

st
 March 2013 have been made.  

 
 
A3.6 The Council’s CFR for the year represents a key prudential indicator analysed at 

Annex 1 and summarised below. This includes PFI schemes on the balance sheet, 
which increase the Council’s long term liabilities.  No borrowing is actually required 
against these schemes as a borrowing facility is included in the contract (if 
applicable). 

 
 

CFR (£m) 
31 March 
2012 
Actual 

31 March 
2013 
Revised 
Indicator 

31 March 
2013 
Actual 

CFR at Year End  137 138 136 

 
 
A3.6 The borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for net borrowing and 

the CFR, and by the authorised limit presented at Annex 1 to this report. 
 
 

A4 Treasury Position at Year End 
 
A4.1 The Council’s funding and investment positions at the beginning and end of year 

was as follows: 

Page 60



  

 

 
*  The Capital Investment Plan approved in February 2013 requires £27m to support approved schemes        

        over the next four years.  
**  Rates for investments reflect the average rate achieved over the full year. 
*** The principal for external management of funds reflects the original amount applied to the contract in 2007 

and subsequent additions and withdrawals 
 
 
A4.2  The total borrowing figure at year end of £148.1m includes borrowing supported by 

central government. The Local Government Finance Settlement for 2012/13 
(available on the Communities and Local Government website) recognises a figure 
of £89m on which central funding is based for interest payments and MRP. 

 
A4.3 The outturn against approved treasury limits is analysed at Annex 1 to this report.  

 

A5. The Strategy for 2012/13 

 

 
A5.1 The central strategy aimed to reduce the difference between gross and net 

borrowing levels in order to reduce the credit risk and cost incurred by holding 
high levels of investment. 

 
A5.2 The economic outlook for 2012/13 however, expected little opportunity to repay 

borrowing. The expectation for interest rates anticipated continuing low levels 
with only a gradual rise in the latter part of the year. 

 
 

31 March 2012 
Principal 

Rate/ 
Return 

Average 
Life yrs 

31 March 2013 
Principal 

Rate/ 
Return 

Average 
Life yrs 

Fixed rate funding:          

 -PWLB £143.5m    £138.1m    

 -Market £10.0m £153.5m 4.31% 27.0 £10.0m £148.1m 4.33% 26.9 

Variable rate funding:         

 -PWLB £0.00m    £0.0m    

 -Market £0.00 £0.00m 0%  £0.0m £0.0m 0%  

Total Borrowing  £153.5m 4.31% 27.0  £148.1m 4.33% 27.0 

Other Long Term 
Liabilities 

 £9.7M 5.26% 15.0  £9.3M 5.26% 14.0 

Total 

Borrowing/Other 

LTL 

 £163.2M 4.37% 25.9  £157.4M 4.39% 24.9 

         

CFR  £137.0m    £136.0m   

Borrowing in 

excess of CFR* 
 £26.2m    £21.4m   

         

Investments**         

 - in house  £67.6m 1.41%   £52.1m 2.03%  

- with managers***  £35.5m 1.51%   £29.8m 1.40%  

Total investments  £103.1m 1.43%   £81.9m 1.81%  

Page 61



  

 
A5.3 Investment strategy was strongly influenced by market and credit risk 

considerations with deposits planned generally for shorter durations with a 
limited number of secure counterparties, particularly UK part-nationalised banks, 
with relatively low returns. 

 

 

 

A6 The Economy and Interest Rates 2012/13 

 
A6.1 A commentary of the economic factors prevalent in 2012/13 is given at Annex 2.  

 

 

 

A7. Borrowing Rates in 2012/13 

 
A7.1 The following graph below shows, for a selection of PWLB maturity periods, the 

path of rate movements during 2012/13 remaining close to historically low levels 
throughout the year. 

 

 

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

2012/13 PWLB new borrowing  rates 1 to 50 years

1 4½-5 9½-10 25-25½ 49½-50

 
 

 
A7.2 A separate tier of rates applies to early repayment of loans which is around 1% 

lower than new borrowing levels. Repayment rates need to be as high as 
possible (matching or exceeding the individual loan rate) to make debt 
rescheduling economic. Given the overriding aim to reduce borrowing the rate 
environment during the year restricted opportunities for loan repayment. 

 

A8 Borrowing Outturn for 2012/13 

 
A8.1 In line with the overall strategy of reducing borrowing levels, an approach was 

Page 62



  

made by the Mayor and local MPs to central government requesting the Council 
be allowed to repay a significant level of PWLB loans without repayment penalty. 
This request was declined by the Treasury. 

 
A8.2 Officers continued to monitor market conditions rates for opportunities to reduce 

borrowing and £5.4 million of PWLB loans were prematurely repaid during the year 
with breakage costs of £374,816. The resultant interest savings will fund these 
costs over a two year payback period.  

 
A8.3 Borrowing Performance – Total borrowing was reduced from £153.4 million to 

£148.1 million during the year generating ongoing annual savings of £204k  The 
average rate of interest paid on loans in 2012/13 was 4.31%. 

 
 

A9 Investment Rates in 2012/13 
 
A9.1 Bank Rate remained at its historic low of 0.5% throughout the year; it has now 

remained unchanged for four years.  Market expectations of the start of monetary 
tightening were pushed back during the year to early 2015 at the earliest.  The 
Funding for Lending Scheme resulted in a sharp fall in deposit rates in the second 
half of the year. 

 
A9.2 In July 2012 the Bank of England launched Funding for Lending, a scheme which 

allows banks and building societies to borrow from the Bank of England at cheaper 
than market rates for up to four years, creating an incentive for banks to increase 
lending to businesses and households. 

 
A9.3 The cheaper funding provided by the scheme meant Banks were less reliant on 

normal funding sources, including local authorities, with a resulting fall in market 
rate levels. 

 
A9.4 The following graph below illustrates the path of investment rate movements 

during 2012/13. The effect of the Funding for Lending scheme is clearly 
illustrated. 

 
 

Page 63



  

 
 
 
 

A10 Investment Outturn for 2012/13 

 

A10.1 Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by DCLG 
guidance which emphasises the priorities of security and liquidity of funds and 
requires Local Authorities to set out their approach for selecting suitable 
counterparties. The policy was approved by Council within the Annual 
Investment Strategy on 13

th
 February 2012 and is based on credit ratings 

provided by the three main credit rating agencies supplemented by additional 
market data. 

 
A10.2 In line with the Strategy investments were made within a tight counterparty 

selection framework with significant sums kept in liquidity accounts. As forecasts for 
the timing of interest rate rises were pushed back a number of one to two year 
deals were taken with UK part-nationalised banks to provide protection to 
investments returns. 

 
A10.3 Due to the Euro zone sovereign debt crisis and its potential impact on banks the 

Chief Finance Officer has removed Eurozone Banks from the approved list. A 
further restriction reducing the maximum duration for new deposits to three months 
for all counterparties regardless of their individual credit quality (excluding UK part-
nationalised Banks) was lifted in February 2013. 

 
A10.4 The longer investments with UK part-nationalised Banks reflects officer’s view that 

these institutions continue to offer the safest domicile for Council cash with the 
implicit UK government guarantee overriding individual credit ratings.  

 
A10.5 A list of those institutions with which the in-house team invested funds during the 

year is provided at Annex 3. No institutions with which investments were made 
showed any difficulty in repaying investments and interest in full during the year. 

 
 

Page 64



  

A10.6 Externally Managed Investments – Scottish Widows Investment Partnership 
(SWIP) was appointed to a proportion of the Council’s cash on 21

st
 June 2007. 

The CFO has set a maximum of 35% of total investments to be managed 
externally and the fund was reduced to £28.9M at year end to comply with this 
limit. The average size of the holding in 2012/13 was £34.5M  

 
A10.7 During the year SWIP has made use of good quality credit assets to enhance 

returns. The supply of these assets began to dry up approaching the end of the 
year. SWIP also invested in a number of other instruments over a diverse range of 
counterparties. 

 
A10.8 Performance Analysis - Detailed below is the result of the investment strategy 

undertaken by the Council. Despite the continuing difficult operating environment 
the Council’s investment returns remain well in excess of the benchmark. 

 

 Average 
Investment 
Principal 

Rate of Return 
(gross of fees) 

Rate of Return 
(net of fees) Benchmark/ 

Target Return  

 

Internally Managed 
£66,133,588 2.031% na 0.394% 

 

Externally Managed  

  

 
£34,464,000 

 
1.400% 1.250% 0.436% 

 
The benchmark for internally managed funds is the average 7-day LIBID rate (uncompounded). 
The benchmark for externally managed funds is the 7-day LIBID rates, averaged for the week and 
compounded weekly. 

 
 
A10.9 In interest terms, the in-house treasury function contributed an additional 

£1,082,000 to the General Fund over and above what would have been attained 
from the benchmark return. SWIP’s net return achieved an additional £280,000 
over their target return level of 10% above benchmark.  

 
 

A10.10 Alternative forms of investment e.g. loans to Housing Associations, sovereign 
instruments, supplier discounts for upfront payments were considered by officers 
as ways to enhance returns. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A11 Revenue Budget Performance 

 
A11.1 The effect of the decisions outlined in this report on the approved revenue 

budget is outlined in the table below. 

Page 65



  

 

 Revised 
Budget 
2012/13 

Actual 2012/13 Variation 

 £M £M £M 

Investment Income (1.0) (1.8) (0.8) 

Interest Paid on Borrowing 6.6 6.6 0.0 

Premium on early repayment of 
Borrowing 

0.1 0.3 0.2 

Net Position (Interest) 5.7 5.1 (0.6) 

    

Minimum Revenue Provision 4.4 4.7 0.3 

PFI Grant re: MRP (0.4) (0.4) 0.0 

Net Position (Other) 4.0 4.3 0.3 

    

Net Position Overall 9.7 9.4 (0.3) 

 
 
A11.2 The Revenue Grant settlement 2012/13 formula includes notional funding of 

£8.4m for interest payments and MRP related to supported borrowing within the 
above figures. 

 
A11.3 The changing position was regularly reported to OSB and Council throughout 

the year as part of the budget monitoring reports to Members 

 

 

A12 Reporting Arrangements and Management Evaluation 

 
A12.1 The management and evaluation arrangements identified in the annual strategy 

and followed for 2012/13 were as follows: 
 

• Weekly monitoring report to Executive Lead for Finance and Chief Finance 
Officer 

• Monthly meeting of the Treasury Manager and Chief Accountant to review 
previous months performance and plan following months activities 

• Regular meetings with the Council’s treasury advisors 

• Regular meetings with the Council’s appointed Fund Managers 

• Membership and participation in the CIPFA Benchmarking Club 
 
A12.2 Draft results for the 2012/13 CIPFA Benchmarking Club, show that the treasury 

management team achieved interest rate performance in the top 30% of 
participating Authorities for borrowing and the top 10% for investments. 

Page 66



  

 
Annex1 

 

 

Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2012/13 
 
 
 

Net borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over 
the medium term the Council’s external borrowing, net of investments, must only be for a 
capital purpose.  This essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support 
revenue expenditure.  Net borrowing should not therefore, except in the short term, have 
exceeded the CFR for 2012/13 plus the expected changes to the CFR over 2013/14 and 
2014/15.  This indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its 
immediate capital needs in 2012/13.  The table below highlights the Council’s net 
borrowing position against the CFR.  The Council has complied with this prudential 
indicator. 
 

CFR (£m) 
31 March 
2012 
Actual 

31 March 
2013 

Revised Q3 
Indicator 

31 March 
2013 
Actual 

Opening balance  137.6 137.1 137.1 

Capital expenditure in year funded 
from borrowing 

3.4 6.4 3.6 

Minimum Revenue Position (3.9) (4.6) (4.6) 

Repayment of Deferred Liabilities 0 0 0 

CFR at Year End  137.1 138.9 136.1 

Net borrowing position 60.1 73.1 75.5 

 
 

The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by 
s3 of the Local Government Act 2003.  The Council does not have the power to borrow 
above this level.  The table below demonstrates that during 2012/13 the Council has 
maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit.  
 

The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected borrowing position 
of the Council during the year.  Periods where the actual position is either below or over 
the boundary is acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being breached. Borrowing 
levels were maintained well below the operational boundary throughout the year. 
 

 2012/13 

Authorised limit £192m 

Maximum gross borrowing position  £154m 

Operational boundary £173m 

Average gross borrowing position  £152m 

 
 

Page 67



  

 

Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies 
the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term liabilities net of investment 
income) against the net revenue stream. 
 
 

 2012/13 

Total Financing Costs £9.4m 

Net Revenue Stream  £123.7m 

Ratio – Including direct financing from Revenue 8.84% 

Ratio - Excluding direct financing from Revenue 7.62% 

 
 

 

Treasury Indicators: 
 

Maturity Structure of the fixed rate borrowing portfolio - This indicator assists 
Authorities avoid large concentrations of fixed rate debt that has the same maturity 
structure and would therefore need to be replaced at the same time. 

 

 31 March 
2013 
Actual 

31 March 
2013 

Proportion 

2012/13 
Original Limits 
Upper-Lower 

Under 12 months  £0 0% 7% - 0% 

12 months and within 24 months £0 0% 7% - 0% 

24 months and within 5 years £0 0% 7% - 0% 

5 years and within 10 years £19M 13% 19% - 6% 

10 years and within 25 years £38M 26% 32% - 12% 

25 years to 40 years £55M 37% 45% - 12% 

Over 40 years £36M 24% 35% - 10% 

 

 

Principal sums invested for over 364 days - The purpose of this indicator is to contain 
the Council’s exposure to the possibility of losses that might arise as a result of it having to 
seek early repayment or redemption of principal sums invested. The 2012/13 Actual 
applies to a £5m 2-year in-house deal and funds administered by the external Fund 
Manager. 

 2011/12 
Actual 
 

2012/13 
Limit 
 

2012/13 
Actual 
 

Investments of 1 year and over £12m £68m £19m 

 

 

Exposure to Fixed and Variable Rates - The Prudential Code requires the Council to set 
upper limits on its exposure to the effects of changes on interest rates.  

Page 68



  

The fixed rate limit set allows for the Council’s entire borrowing to be locked out at 
affordable levels. The variable limit reflects the use of Liquidity Accounts for investing 
cash. (The negative Actual net values reflects the extensive use of these variable rate 
instruments due to attractive rates and counterparty concerns), netted against a zero level 
of variable debt.) 

 31 March 
2012 
Actual 

2012/13 
 Upper Limits 

31 March 
2013 
Actual 

Net principal re fixed rate borrowing / 
investments 

£101m £150m £144m 

Net principal re variable rate borrowing / 
investments 

-£51m £41m -£38m 

Limits on fixed interest rates: 
• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
153 
52 

 
163 
85 

 
148 
44 

Limits on variable interest rates 
• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
0 
51 

 
41 
70 

 
0 
38 

 

Page 69



  

 
Annex 2 

 
The Economy and Interest Rates 2012/13 
 
By Sector Treasury Services 29

th
 April 2013 

 
Sovereign debt crisis. The EU sovereign debt crisis was an ongoing saga during the year.  
However, the ECB statement in July that it would do “whatever it takes” to support 
struggling Eurozone countries provided a major boost in confidence that the Eurozone was 
(at last) beginning to get on top of its problems.  This was followed by the establishment of 
the Outright Monetary Transactions Scheme in September.  During the summer, a €100bn 
package of support was given to Spanish banks.  The crisis over Greece blew up again as 
it became apparent that the first bailout package was insufficient.  An eventual very 
protracted agreement of a second bailout for Greece in December was then followed by a 
second major crisis, this time over Cyprus, towards the end of the year.  In addition, the 
Italian general election in February resulted in the new Five Star anti-austerity party 
gaining a 25% blocking vote; this has the potential to make Italy almost ungovernable if the 
grand coalition formed in April proves unable to agree on individual policies.  This could 
then cause a second general election – but one which could yield an equally 
‘unsatisfactory’ result!  This result emphasises the dangers of a Eurozone approach 
heavily focused on imposing austerity, rather than promoting economic growth, reducing 
unemployment, and addressing the need to win voter support in democracies subject to 
periodic general elections.  This weakness leaves continuing concerns that this approach 
has merely postponed the ultimate debt crisis, rather than provide a conclusive solution. 
These problems will, in turn, also affect the financial strength of many already weakened 
EU banks during the expected economic downturn in the EU.  There are also major 
questions as to whether the Greek Government will be able to deliver on its promises of 
cuts in expenditure and increasing tax collection rates, given the hostility of much of the 
population.   
 
The UK coalition Government maintained its tight fiscal policy stance against a 
background of warnings from two credit rating agencies that the UK could lose its AAA 
credit rating. Moody’s followed up this warning by actually downgrading the rating to AA+ 
in February 2013 and Fitch then placed their rating on negative watch, after the Budget 
statement in March. Key to retaining the AAA rating from Fitch and S&P will be a return to 
strong economic growth in order to reduce the national debt burden to a sustainable level, 
within a reasonable timeframe.   
 
UK growth.  2012/13 started the first quarter with negative growth of -0.4%.  This was 
followed by an Olympics boosted +0.9% in the next quarter, then by a return to negative 
growth of -0.3% in the third quarter and finally a positive figure of +0.3% in the last quarter. 
This weak UK growth resulted in the Monetary Policy Committee increasing quantitative 
easing (QE) by £50bn in July to a total of £375bn on concerns of a downturn in growth and 
a forecast for inflation to fall below the 2% target. QE was targeted at further gilt 
purchases.    In the March 2013 Budget, the Office of Budget Responsibility yet again 
slashed its previously over optimistic growth forecasts, for both calendar years 2013 and 
2014, to 0.6% and 1.8% respectively.   
 
UK CPI inflation has remained stubbornly high and above the 2% target, starting the year 
at 3.0% and still being at 2.8% in March; however, it is forecast to fall to 2% in three years 
time. The MPC has continued its stance of looking through temporary spikes in inflation by 
placing more importance on the need to promote economic growth.  
 

Page 70



  

Gilt yields oscillated during the year as events in the ongoing Eurozone debt crisis ebbed 
and flowed, causing corresponding fluctuations in safe haven flows into / out of UK gilts.  
This, together with a further £50bn of QE in July and widely expected further QE still to 
come, combined to keep PWLB rates depressed for much of the year at historically low 
levels.  
 
Bank Rate was unchanged at 0.5% throughout the year, while expectations of when the 
first increase would occur were pushed back to quarter 1 2015 at the earliest.   
 
Deposit rates.  The Funding for Lending Scheme, announced in July, resulted in a flood of 
cheap credit being made available to banks and this has resulted in money market 
investment rates falling sharply in the second half of the year. However, perceptions of 
counterparty risk have improved after the ECB statement in July that it would do “whatever 
it takes” to support struggling Eurozone countries.  This has resulted in some return of 
confidence to move away from only very short term investing.   

Page 71



  

 

Annex 3 

 

 

Counterparties with which funds were deposited (April 2012 – March 2013) 

 

 

 

Banks and Building Societies 

 
Bank of Scotland 
Lloyds TSB 
Nationwide Building Society 
Royal Bank of Scotland/National Westminster 
Santander UK 
Svenska Handelsbanken 
 

 

Local Authorities  
 
City of Newcastle upon Tyne 
 

 

Other Approved Institutions 

 
Public Sector Deposit Fund 
Royal Bank of Scotland Money Market Fund 
Scottish Widows Investment Partnership 
 
 

Page 72



  

 
 

Title: Strategic Risk Management 2012/13 
  
Wards Affected: All Wards 
  

To: Audit Committee On: 26 June 2013 
    
Key Decision: No   
   

Change to 
Budget: 

No Change to 
Policy 
Framework: 

No 
 

   

Contact Officer: Mark Bennett 

℡ Telephone: 01803 207360 
�  E.mail: Mark.bennett@torbay.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Key points and Summary 
 
1.1 The Council has developed a new approach to risk management as reported to the 

Audit Committee in March 2013. This report outlines the council’s position at the end 

of 2012/13 

 

1.2 Five Key Strategic Risks have been identified for the Council during 2012/13.  A lead 

(sponsoring) director/executive head has been identified for each risk. 

 
1.3 The risk register will be monitored by directors on a monthly basis through exception 

reporting to enable them to; 

 

• Review Performance 

• Agree new relevant actions 

• Identify emerging strategic risks 

 

1.4 Quarterly reports will be made to the Senior Leadership Team and this Committee. 

 

1.5 A training programme for staff will be developed using the established I-learn intranet 

training system. 

 

1.6 The existing operational risk management processes of the council will be aligned with 

the revised strategic approach. 

  

Agenda Item 12

Page 73



  

Supporting Information 
 
A1. Introduction and history 
 
A1 Five Key Strategic Risks have been identified for the Council during 2012/13; A lead 

(sponsoring) director/executive head has be identified for each risk: 
Fair decision making – Mark Bennett 
Demand management – Caroline Taylor 
Welfare reforms – Charles Uzzell 
Finance – Paul Looby 
Safeguarding - Richard Williams 

 
B2  Position at end of 2013/14 
 
B1 Mitigation measures have been identified for all strategic risks. Current effectiveness 

has been assessed against a four point scale: 
 

Will achieve desired outcomes A 

Minor improvement actions - monitor B 

Improvement actions - monitor with concern C 

Won't achieve desired outcomes D 

 
B2 The majority of mitigation measures have been assessed as A or B with no risks 

identified with category D 
 
B3   Performance overview:  
 

1 Fair Decision making 
 

• Actions have been identified to minimise the possibility of a successful legal 
challenge against the council’s decision to reconfigure services.  

o During the year the council has not incurred costs or delays in 
reconfiguring its services through legal challenge. Key elements in 
achieving this has been; 

� A clear timetable and process for decision making for the 
2013/14 budget 

� Effective consultation and scrutiny 
� Undertaking equalities impact assessments  
� Providing members with sufficient information prior to 

decisions being made 

• The council constantly reviews developing court cases form other areas to 
ensure that its processes remain fit for purpose with regular reports to the 
Senior leadership Team 
 

2 Demand management 
 

• Actions have been identified to enable the Council to understand and plan 
for changes in demand for through demographic change and changes in 
government policy 

o Although work has been undertaken in this area this will require 
further development during 2013/14 to enable robust predictions to 
be built into our plans for the future. 

Page 74



  

 
3 Welfare reforms 
 

• Actions have been identified to enable the Council to understand and 
develop actions to mitigate the impact of benefit reforms being introduced 
during 2013/14 

o Key element have been successfully addressed however, as with the 
introduction of any new policy careful monitoring will be required, 
especially to understand and address secondary impacts for example 
homelessness  
 

4 Finance  
 

• Actions have been identified to enable the Council to deliver a balanced 
budget with an agreed level of reserves 

o This risk has been successfully managed during 2012/13 at a time 
when Torbay along with all council’s has been required to address 
the impact of a reduction in grants from central government 

o  Managing this risk will be a continuing challenge in  future years 
 

5 Safeguarding  
 

• Children’s Safeguarding has been a particular focus for the council in recent 
years with effective measures in place at an operational at strategic level to 
address this issue  

o The recent Ofsted inspection has recognised these improvements  
o For 2013/14 this will be a continued area for focus to ensure agreed 

actions continue to be delivered and to address developments  in 
adult social care, in particular safeguarding of individuals who are 
privately funded 

 
C1 Conclusion 
 

The development of a new approach has enabled the council to take a more strategic 
approach to risk management during 2012 /13.  For 2014/15 the focus will be to 
further develop this approach to embed it within the organisation. 

 
Appendices 

• Strategic Risk Register 2013/14 

 
 

Page 75



Strategic Risk Register - Overview 13/06/2013

Click here to return to Index

Key to strength:

Will achieve desired outcomes A

Minor improvement actions - monitor B

Improvement actions - monitor with concern C

Won't achieve desired outcomes D

Clicking on all headings will take you through to the appropriate worksheet…

Fair Decision Making:

Measure Current Strength

Clear timetable and process for decision making B

Effective Consultation A

Equality Impact Assessments undertaken A

Effective Scrutiny 1 - Improve focus and quality of scrutiny recommendations A

Effective Scrutiny 2 - Agree protocol - Mayor/Scrutiny C

Impact assessments and consultation results available to members when decision are 

made
A

Demand Management:

Measure Current Strength

Effective early intervention B

Analyse impact of government policy changes A

Introduction of demand modelling within JSNA C

Effective long term modelling of demand and analysis of costs (Census 2011) C

Improved planning for demand within budget development C

Improved planning for demand in medium term financial plan C

Improved planning for demand within services (£ + people) C

Building demand indicators into performance reports C

Welfare Reforms:

Measure Current Strength

Follow Fair Funding mitigation measures A

Assess potential for non payment and secondary impacts and build into 2013/14 budget
B

Assess potential for non payment and secondary impacts and build into MTFP B

Timely & effective advice - Clear guidance given to Connections staff B

Timely & effective advice - Voluntary sector briefed and SLA's modified B

Provide emergency funding - hardship and social fund B

Monitor impact of reforms including secondary impacts e.g. homelessness and adjust 

predictions
C

Monitor impact of reforms including secondary impacts e.g. homelessness and build into 

MTFP
C

Monitor impact of reforms and consider changes to council tax benefit scheme/hardship 

fund
C

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1

Page 76



Strategic Risk Register - Overview 13/06/2013

Finance:

Measure Current Strength

Probability of delivery assessed in budget process B

Track delivery of agreed savings B

Quarterly budget outturn reports B

Effective recovery planning B

Review future requirements for service delivery - complete service reviews B

Review future requirements for service delivery - develop action plans C

Safeguarding vulnerable adults and children:

Measure Current Strength

Continuation of Improvement Programme A

Local Safeguarding Board - Widen membership to reflect changing role of partner 

agencies by 18 July 2013
B

Local Safeguarding Board - Develop a focused programme of scrutiny following 

publication of Ofsted inspection
B

Local Safeguarding Board - Establish role of new CEO in relation to board B

Effective performance mgmt - Continue to report Key Performance Indicators to SLT and 

Directors
C

Ensure new corporate performance management framework effectively covers 

safeguarding issues
C

Page 77



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
- 

E
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

1
3

/0
6

/2
0

1
3

C
li

ck
 h

e
re

 t
o

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 I
n

d
e

x

M
a

cr
o

s 
m

u
st

 b
e

 "
o

n
"

F
a

ir
 D

e
ci

si
o

n
 M

a
k

in
g

:

M
e

a
su

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
s

P
ro

g
re

ss

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 S
cr

u
ti

n
y

 2
 -

 A
g

re
e

 p
ro

to
co

l 
- 

M
a

y
o

r/
S

cr
u

ti
n

y
C

A
g

re
e

 p
ro

to
co

l 
- 

M
a

y
o

r/
S

cr
u

ti
n

y
#

N
/A

D
e

m
a

n
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t:

M
e

a
su

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
s

P
ro

g
re

ss

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 m
o

d
e

ll
in

g
 

w
it

h
in

 J
S

N
A

C
In

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 m

o
d

e
ll

in
g

 w
it

h
in

 J
S

N
A

O
n

 g
o

in
g

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 m

o
d

e
ll

in
g

 o
f 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 
o

f 
co

st
s 

(C
e

n
su

s 
2

0
1

1
)

C
A

n
a

ly
si

s 
o

f 
2

0
1

1
 C

e
n

su
s

O
n

 g
o

in
g

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 

w
it

h
in

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 w

it
h

in
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

O
n

 g
o

in
g

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 i

n
 

m
e

d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
p

la
n

C
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 i

n
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

p
la

n
O

n
 g

o
in

g

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 

w
it

h
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

(£
 +

 p
e

o
p

le
)

C
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 w

it
h

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
(£

 +
 p

e
o

p
le

)
O

n
 g

o
in

g

B
u

il
d

in
g

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 i

n
to

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 r
e

p
o

rt
s

C
D

e
ve

lo
p

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

w
it

h
 S

LT
D

ra
ft

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
s:

M
e

a
su

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
s

P
ro

g
re

ss

M
o

n
it

o
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

re
fo

rm
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

se
co

n
d

a
ry

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

e
.g

. 

h
o

m
e

le
ss

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 a
d

ju
st

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
s

C
M

o
n

it
o

r 
im

p
a

ct
 a

n
d

 a
d

ju
st

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
s

O
n

 g
o

in
g

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 2

Page 78



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
- 

E
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

1
3

/0
6

/2
0

1
3

M
o

n
it

o
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

re
fo

rm
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

se
co

n
d

a
ry

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

e
.g

. 

h
o

m
e

le
ss

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

 i
n

to
 M

T
F

P

C
B

u
il

d
 i

n
to

 m
e

d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
p

la
n

O
n

 g
o

in
g

M
o

n
it

o
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

re
fo

rm
s 

a
n

d
 

co
n

si
d

e
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

to
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
ta

x 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

sc
h

e
m

e
/h

a
rd

sh
ip

 f
u

n
d

C
C

o
n

si
d

e
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

to
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
ta

x 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
sc

h
e

m
e

/h
a

rd
sh

ip
 f

u
n

d
O

n
 g

o
in

g

F
in

a
n

ce
:

M
e

a
su

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
s

P
ro

g
re

ss

R
e

v
ie

w
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 -
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 a

ct
io

n
 

p
la

n
s

C
D

e
ve

lo
p

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
s

#
N

/A

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d

u
lt

s 
a

n
d

 c
h

il
d

re
n

:

M
e

a
su

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
s

P
ro

g
re

ss

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 m
g

m
t 

- 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 

In
d

ic
a

to
rs

 t
o

 S
LT

 a
n

d
 D

ir
e

ct
o

rs

C
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 K

e
y

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 S

LT
 a

n
d

 

D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

#
N

/A

E
n

su
re

 n
e

w
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
ly

 

co
v

e
rs

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 i

ss
u

e
s

C
E

n
su

re
 n

e
w

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 c

o
ve

rs
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 i
ss

u
e

s
#

N
/A

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 r
o

le
 (

le
a

d
 

m
e

m
b

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

P
ri

tc
h

a
rd

)

C
R

e
vi

e
w

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 r
o

le
 

(l
e

a
d

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

P
ri

tc
h

a
rd

) 
*

*
 T

o
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 *

*

T
h

e
 r

e
vi

e
w

 o
f 

p
a

st
 y

e
a

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 i

s 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 a

re
 f

o
rt

h
co

m
in

g

Page 79



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
- 

E
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

1
3

/0
6

/2
0

1
3

C
li

ck
 h

e
re

 t
o

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 I
n

d
e

x

M
a

cr
o

s 
m

u
st

 b
e

 "
o

n
"

F
a

ir
 D

e
ci

si
o

n
 M

a
k

in
g

:

M
e

a
su

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
s

P
ro

g
re

ss

C
le

a
r 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
 f

o
r 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 m
a

k
in

g
B

M
a

y
o

rs
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

3
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 t

o
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 t

im
e

 

fo
r 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

.

A
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 e
a

rl
ie

r 
th

a
n

 p
re

vi
o

u
s 

y
e

a
rs

 N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 

ta
rg

e
t 

n
o

t 
m

e
t.

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n

A
N

o
n

e

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
, 

h
o

w
e

ve
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
cl

a
ri

ty
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 w
il

l 

b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
.

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n

A
N

o
n

e

Im
p

a
ct

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

ll
y

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

, 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y

 b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

le
g

a
l 

ca
se

s 
in

vo
lv

in
g

 o
th

e
r 

lo
ca

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s.

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 S
cr

u
ti

n
y

 1
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 f
o

cu
s 

a
n

d
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

sc
ru

ti
n

y
 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

A
Im

p
ro

ve
 f

o
cu

s 
a

n
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
sc

ru
ti

n
y

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
A

 m
o

re
 f

o
cu

se
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 s
cr

u
ti

n
y

 a
ch

ie
ve

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 S
cr

u
ti

n
y

 2
 -

 A
g

re
e

 p
ro

to
co

l 
- 

M
a

y
o

r/
S

cr
u

ti
n

y
C

A
g

re
e

 p
ro

to
co

l 
- 

M
a

y
o

r/
S

cr
u

ti
n

y
#

N
/A

Im
p

a
ct

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

su
lt

s 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
h

e
n

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 a
re

 m
a

d
e

A
N

o
n

e
A

ch
ie

ve
d

D
e

m
a

n
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t:

M
e

a
su

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
s

P
ro

g
re

ss

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 e
a

rl
y

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
B

C
le

a
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 c
a

se
 l

in
k

e
d

 t
o

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

O
n

 g
o

in
g

A
n

a
ly

se
 i

m
p

a
ct

 o
f 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

p
o

li
cy

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
A

N
o

n
e

R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 f

o
rt

n
ig

h
tl

y
 t

o
 S

LT

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 m
o

d
e

ll
in

g
 

w
it

h
in

 J
S

N
A

C
In

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 m

o
d

e
ll

in
g

 w
it

h
in

 J
S

N
A

O
n

 g
o

in
g

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 3

Page 80



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
- 

E
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

1
3

/0
6

/2
0

1
3

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 m

o
d

e
ll

in
g

 o
f 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 
o

f 
co

st
s 

(C
e

n
su

s 
2

0
1

1
)

C
A

n
a

ly
si

s 
o

f 
2

0
1

1
 C

e
n

su
s

O
n

 g
o

in
g

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 

w
it

h
in

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 w

it
h

in
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

O
n

 g
o

in
g

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 i

n
 

m
e

d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
p

la
n

C
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 i

n
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

p
la

n
O

n
 g

o
in

g

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 

w
it

h
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

(£
 +

 p
e

o
p

le
)

C
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 w

it
h

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
(£

 +
 p

e
o

p
le

)
O

n
 g

o
in

g

B
u

il
d

in
g

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 i

n
to

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 r
e

p
o

rt
s

C
D

e
ve

lo
p

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

w
it

h
 S

LT
D

ra
ft

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
s:

M
e

a
su

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
s

P
ro

g
re

ss

F
o

ll
o

w
 F

a
ir

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 m
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

a
su

re
s

A
N

o
n

e
F

o
ll

o
w

e
d

 i
n

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
T

a
x 

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 s
ch

e
m

e

A
ss

e
ss

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
n

o
n

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 s

e
co

n
d

a
ry

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

a
n

d
 b

u
il

d
 

in
to

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 b
u

d
g

e
t

B
B

u
il

d
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

in
to

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 b
u

d
g

e
t

O
n

 g
o

in
g

A
ss

e
ss

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
n

o
n

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 s

e
co

n
d

a
ry

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

a
n

d
 b

u
il

d
 

in
to

 M
T

F
P

B
B

u
il

d
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

in
to

 m
e

d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
p

la
n

O
n

 g
o

in
g

T
im

e
ly

 &
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

d
v

ic
e

 -
 C

le
a

r 

g
u

id
a

n
ce

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
st

a
ff

B
C

le
a

r 
g

u
id

a
n

ce
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

st
a

ff
#

N
/A

T
im

e
ly

 &
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

d
v

ic
e

 -
 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

ct
o

r 
b

ri
e

fe
d

 a
n

d
 S

LA
's

 

m
o

d
if

ie
d

B
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
ct

o
r 

b
ri

e
fe

d
 a

n
d

 S
LA

's
 m

o
d

if
ie

d
#

N
/A

P
ro

v
id

e
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
cy

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 -
 

h
a

rd
sh

ip
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
fu

n
d

B
F

u
n

d
in

g
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
ci

se
d

#
N

/A

Page 81



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
- 

E
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

1
3

/0
6

/2
0

1
3

M
o

n
it

o
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

re
fo

rm
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

se
co

n
d

a
ry

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

e
.g

. 

h
o

m
e

le
ss

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 a
d

ju
st

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
s

C
M

o
n

it
o

r 
im

p
a

ct
 a

n
d

 a
d

ju
st

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
s

O
n

 g
o

in
g

M
o

n
it

o
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

re
fo

rm
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

se
co

n
d

a
ry

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

e
.g

. 

h
o

m
e

le
ss

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

 i
n

to
 M

T
F

P

C
B

u
il

d
 i

n
to

 m
e

d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
p

la
n

O
n

 g
o

in
g

M
o

n
it

o
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

re
fo

rm
s 

a
n

d
 

co
n

si
d

e
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

to
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
ta

x 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

sc
h

e
m

e
/h

a
rd

sh
ip

 f
u

n
d

C
C

o
n

si
d

e
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

to
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
ta

x 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
sc

h
e

m
e

/h
a

rd
sh

ip
 f

u
n

d
O

n
 g

o
in

g

F
in

a
n

ce
:

M
e

a
su

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
s

P
ro

g
re

ss

P
ro

b
a

b
il

it
y

 o
f 

d
e

li
v

e
ry

 a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 i
n

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

B
In

cl
u

d
e

d
 i

n
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

#
N

/A

T
ra

ck
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s

B
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 S
LT

#
N

/A

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 r
e

p
o

rt
s

B
R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 S
LT

 w
it

h
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 c

h
il

d
re

n
's

, 
a

d
u

lt
s,

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 

in
co

m
e

#
N

/A

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 r
e

co
v

e
ry

 p
la

n
n

in
g

B
T

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
LT

#
N

/A

R
e

v
ie

w
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 -
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

re
v

ie
w

s

B
C

o
m

p
le

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

vi
e

w
s

#
N

/A

R
e

v
ie

w
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 -
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 a

ct
io

n
 

p
la

n
s

C
D

e
ve

lo
p

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
s

#
N

/A

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d

u
lt

s 
a

n
d

 c
h

il
d

re
n

:

M
e

a
su

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
s

P
ro

g
re

ss

Page 82



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
- 

E
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

1
3

/0
6

/2
0

1
3

C
o

n
ti

n
u

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
A

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 t

o
 L

o
ca

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

, 
S

LT
 

a
n

d
 S

cr
u

ti
n

y
O

n
 g

o
in

g

Lo
ca

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 -
 W

id
e

n
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

ct
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 r
o

le
 

o
f 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
b

y
 1

8
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

B
F

o
cu

s 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 r

e
fl

e
ct

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 r

o
le

 o
f 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 

b
y

 1
8

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
#

N
/A

Lo
ca

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 -
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
 

a
 f

o
cu

se
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
sc

ru
ti

n
y

 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 p
u

b
li

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

O
fs

te
d

 

in
sp

e
ct

io
n

B
D

e
ve

lo
p

 a
 f

o
cu

se
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
sc

ru
ti

n
y

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 p

u
b

li
ca

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

O
fs

te
d

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
#

N
/A

Lo
ca

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 -
 E

st
a

b
li

sh
 

ro
le

 o
f 

n
e

w
 C

E
O

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 b
o

a
rd

B
E

st
a

b
li

sh
 r

o
le

 o
f 

n
e

w
 C

E
O

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 b
o

a
rd

#
N

/A

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 m
g

m
t 

- 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 

In
d

ic
a

to
rs

 t
o

 S
LT

 a
n

d
 D

ir
e

ct
o

rs

C
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 K

e
y

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 S

LT
 a

n
d

 

D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

#
N

/A

E
n

su
re

 n
e

w
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
ly

 

co
v

e
rs

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 i

ss
u

e
s

C
E

n
su

re
 n

e
w

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 c

o
ve

rs
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 i
ss

u
e

s
#

N
/A

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 r
o

le
 (

le
a

d
 

m
e

m
b

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

P
ri

tc
h

a
rd

)

C
R

e
vi

e
w

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 r
o

le
 

(l
e

a
d

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

- 
C

ll
r 

P
ri

tc
h

a
rd

) 
*

*
 T

o
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 *

*

T
h

e
 r

e
vi

e
w

 o
f 

p
a

st
 y

e
a

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 i

s 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 a

re
 f

o
rt

h
co

m
in

g

Page 83



R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r:

 M
a

rk
 B

e
n

n
e

tt
F

a
ir

 D
e

ci
si

o
n

 M
a

k
in

g
 -

 M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
1

3
/0

6
/2

0
1

3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

M
e

a
su

re
O

w
n

e
r

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

E
O

Y
Q

1
Q

2
Q

3
Q

4
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
ct

io
n

s
P

ro
g

re
ss

C
le

a
r 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
 

m
a

k
in

g

P
P

R
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
B

B
M

a
y

o
rs

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
3

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 N

o
v

e
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
2

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

.

A
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 e
a

rl
ie

r 
th

a
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

y
e

a
rs

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

n
o

t 
m

e
t.

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
P

P
R

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
A

A
N

o
n

e

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
g

re
a

te
r 

cl
a

ri
ty

 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 w
il

l 
b

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

.

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n

P
P

R
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
A

A
N

o
n

e

Im
p

a
ct

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

ll
y

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 

o
u

t 
fo

r 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
, 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 

o
n

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

le
g

a
l 

ca
se

s 
in

v
o

lv
in

g
 o

th
e

r 

lo
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s.

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 S
cr

u
ti

n
y

 1
 -

 

Im
p

ro
v

e
 f

o
cu

s 
a

n
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 

o
f 

sc
ru

ti
n

y
 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

S
cr

u
ti

n
y

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
A

A
Im

p
ro

v
e

 f
o

cu
s 

a
n

d
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

sc
ru

ti
n

y
 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

A
 m

o
re

 f
o

cu
se

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 s

cr
u

ti
n

y
 

a
ch

ie
v

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 S
cr

u
ti

n
y

 2
 -

 

A
g

re
e

 p
ro

to
co

l 
- 

M
a

y
o

r/
S

cr
u

ti
n

y

S
cr

u
ti

n
y

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
C

C
A

g
re

e
 p

ro
to

co
l 

- 
M

a
y

o
r/

S
cr

u
ti

n
y

#
N

/A

Im
p

a
ct

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

su
lt

s 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

w
h

e
n

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 a
re

 m
a

d
e

D
e

m
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

A
A

N
o

n
e

A
ch

ie
v

e
d

C
li

ck
 h

e
re

 t
o

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 I
n

d
e

x
2

0
1

3
/1

4

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 4

Page 84



R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r:

 C
a

ro
li

n
e

 T
a

y
lo

r
D

e
m

a
n

d
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
1

3
/0

6
/2

0
1

3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

M
e

a
su

re
O

w
n

e
r

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

E
O

Y
Q

1
Q

2
Q

3
Q

4
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
ct

io
n

s
P

ro
g

re
ss

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 e
a

rl
y

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n

D
A

A
S

/D
ir

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

B
B

C
le

a
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 c
a

se
 l

in
k

e
d

 t
o

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

O
n

 g
o

in
g

A
n

a
ly

se
 i

m
p

a
ct

 o
f 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
p

o
li

cy
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

A
A

N
o

n
e

R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 f

o
rt

n
ig

h
tl

y
 t

o
 S

LT

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 

m
o

d
e

ll
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 J

S
N

A

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
C

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 m
o

d
e

ll
in

g
 

w
it

h
in

 J
S

N
A

O
n

 g
o

in
g

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 

m
o

d
e

ll
in

g
 o

f 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

co
st

s 
(C

e
n

su
s 

2
0

1
1

)

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
C

N
o

n
e

R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 f

o
rt

n
ig

h
tl

y
 t

o
 S

LT

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 w
it

h
in

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
C

C
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 

w
it

h
in

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

O
n

 g
o

in
g

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 i
n

 m
e

d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
p

la
n

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
C

C
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 i
n

 

m
e

d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
p

la
n

O
n

 g
o

in
g

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 w
it

h
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

(£
 +

 

p
e

o
p

le
)

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
C

C
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 

w
it

h
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

(£
 +

 p
e

o
p

le
)

O
n

 g
o

in
g

B
u

il
d

in
g

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

in
to

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 r
e

p
o

rt
s

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
C

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

w
it

h
 S

LT
D

ra
ft

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

2
0

1
3

/1
4

C
li

ck
 h

e
re

 t
o

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 I
n

d
e

x

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 5

Page 85



R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r:

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 W

il
li

a
m

s
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 a

d
u

lt
s 

a
n

d
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 -

 M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
1

3
/0

6
/2

0
1

3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

M
e

a
su

re
O

w
n

e
r

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

E
O

Y
Q

1
Q

2
Q

3
Q

4
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
ct

io
n

s
P

ro
g

re
ss

C
o

n
ti

n
u

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

A
A

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 t

o
 L

o
ca

l 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
, 

S
LT

 a
n

d
 S

cr
u

ti
n

y
O

n
 g

o
in

g

Lo
ca

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 -
 

W
id

e
n

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 

re
fl

e
ct

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 r

o
le

 o
f 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
b

y
 1

8
 J

u
ly

 

2
0

1
3

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

B
B

F
o

cu
s 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

ct
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 r
o

le
 

o
f 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
b

y
 1

8
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

#
N

/A

Lo
ca

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 -
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 f

o
cu

se
d

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
sc

ru
ti

n
y

 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 p
u

b
li

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

O
fs

te
d

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

B
B

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 f

o
cu

se
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
sc

ru
ti

n
y

 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 p
u

b
li

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

O
fs

te
d

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
#

N
/A

Lo
ca

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 -
 

E
st

a
b

li
sh

 r
o

le
 o

f 
n

e
w

 C
E

O
 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

o
a

rd

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

B
B

E
st

a
b

li
sh

 r
o

le
 o

f 
n

e
w

 C
E

O
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

b
o

a
rd

#
N

/A

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 

m
g

m
t 

- 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 

to
 S

LT
 a

n
d

 D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
C

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 

In
d

ic
a

to
rs

 t
o

 S
LT

 a
n

d
 D

ir
e

ct
o

rs
#

N
/A

E
n

su
re

 n
e

w
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
ly

 

co
v

e
rs

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 i

ss
u

e
s

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
C

E
n

su
re

 n
e

w
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
ly

 c
o

v
e

rs
 

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 i
ss

u
e

s

#
N

/A

2
0

1
3

/1
4

C
li

ck
 h

e
re

 t
o

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 I
n

d
e

x

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 6

Page 86



R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r:

 C
h

a
rl

e
s 

U
zz

e
ll

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
s 

- 
M

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

1
3

/0
6

/2
0

1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

M
e

a
su

re
O

w
n

e
r

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

E
O

Y
Q

1
Q

2
Q

3
Q

4
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
ct

io
n

s
P

ro
g

re
ss

F
o

ll
o

w
 F

a
ir

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 

m
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
a

su
re

s

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
A

A
N

o
n

e
F

o
ll

o
w

e
d

 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

T
a

x 
B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 s

ch
e

m
e

A
ss

e
ss

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
n

o
n

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
e

co
n

d
a

ry
 

im
p

a
ct

s 
a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

 i
n

to
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 b
u

d
g

e
t

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
B

B
B

u
il
d

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
in

to
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 b

u
d

g
e

t
O

n
 g

o
in

g

A
ss

e
ss

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
n

o
n

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
e

co
n

d
a

ry
 

im
p

a
ct

s 
a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

 i
n

to
 

M
T

F
P

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
B

B
B

u
il
d

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
in

to
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
p

la
n

O
n

 g
o

in
g

T
im

e
ly

 &
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

d
v

ic
e

 -
 

C
le

a
r 

g
u

id
a

n
ce

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 

C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
st

a
ff

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
B

B
C

le
a

r 
g

u
id

a
n

ce
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 C

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

st
a

ff
#

N
/A

T
im

e
ly

 &
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

d
v

ic
e

 -
 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

ct
o

r 
b

ri
e

fe
d

 

a
n

d
 S

LA
's

 m
o

d
if

ie
d

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
B

B
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
ct

o
r 

b
ri

e
fe

d
 a

n
d

 S
LA

's
 

m
o

d
if

ie
d

#
N

/A

P
ro

v
id

e
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
cy

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 -

 h
a

rd
sh

ip
 a

n
d

 

so
ci

a
l 

fu
n

d

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
B

B
F

u
n

d
in

g
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
ci

se
d

#
N

/A

M
o

n
it

o
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

re
fo

rm
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 s
e

co
n

d
a

ry
 

im
p

a
ct

s 
e

.g
. 

h
o

m
e

le
ss

n
e

ss
 

a
n

d
 a

d
ju

st
 p

re
d

ic
ti

o
n

s

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
C

C
M

o
n

it
o

r 
im

p
a

ct
 a

n
d

 a
d

ju
st

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
s

O
n

 g
o

in
g

2
0

1
3

/1
4

C
li

ck
 h

e
re

 t
o

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 I
n

d
e

x

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 7

Page 87



R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r:

 C
h

a
rl

e
s 

U
zz

e
ll

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
s 

- 
M

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

1
3

/0
6

/2
0

1
3

M
o

n
it

o
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

re
fo

rm
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 s
e

co
n

d
a

ry
 

im
p

a
ct

s 
e

.g
. 

h
o

m
e

le
ss

n
e

ss
 

a
n

d
 b

u
il

d
 i

n
to

 M
T

F
P

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
C

C
B

u
il
d

 i
n

to
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

p
la

n
O

n
 g

o
in

g

M
o

n
it

o
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

re
fo

rm
s 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

to
 

co
u

n
ci

l 
ta

x 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 

sc
h

e
m

e
/h

a
rd

sh
ip

 f
u

n
d

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

F
in

a
n

ce
C

C
C

o
n

si
d

e
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

to
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
ta

x 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 

sc
h

e
m

e
/h

a
rd

sh
ip

 f
u

n
d

O
n

 g
o

in
g

Page 88



R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r:

 P
a

u
l 

Lo
o

b
y

F
in

a
n

ce
 -

 M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
1

3
/0

6
/2

0
1

3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

M
e

a
su

re
O

w
n

e
r

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

E
O

Y
Q

1
Q

2
Q

3
Q

4
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
ct

io
n

s
P

ro
g

re
ss

P
ro

b
a

b
il

it
y

 o
f 

d
e

li
v

e
ry

 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 i
n

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

/ 

F
in

a
n

ce

B
B

In
cl

u
d

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

#
N

/A

T
ra

ck
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
d

 

sa
v

in
g

s

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

B
B

R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 S

LT
#

N
/A

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 

re
p

o
rt

s

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

/ 

F
in

a
n

ce

B
B

R
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 S

LT
 w

it
h

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 

ch
il

d
re

n
's

, 
a

d
u

lt
s,

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 

in
co

m
e

#
N

/A

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 r
e

co
v

e
ry

 p
la

n
n

in
g

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
s

B
B

T
o

 b
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

S
LT

#
N

/A

R
e

v
ie

w
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 -
 

co
m

p
le

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
s

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

B
B

C
o

m
p

le
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

s
#

N
/A

R
e

v
ie

w
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 -
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 

a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
s

E
xe

c 
H

e
a

d
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
C

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
s

#
N

/A

2
0

1
3

/1
4

C
li

ck
 h

e
re

 t
o

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 I
n

d
e

x

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 8

Page 89


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Audit Committee Terms of Reference
	8 Audit Committee Update for Torbay Council
	9 The Audit Plan for Torbay Council
	10 Annual Governance Statement 2012/13
	Annual Governance Statement

	11 Treasury Management Outturn 2012/13
	Treasury Management Outturn 2012-13 Appendix 1

	12 Strategic Risk Management 2012/13
	Stategic Risk Management Appendix 1
	Strategic Risk Management Appendix 2
	Strategic Risk Management Appendix 3
	Strategic Risk Management Appendix 4
	Strategic Risk Management Appendix 5
	Strategic Risk Management Appendix 6
	Strategic Risk Management Appendix 7
	Strategic Risk Management Appendix 8


